
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


May 22, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on May 22, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the May 22, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow gave a PowerPoint presentation in honor of the Veterans of the United States and in
recognition of Memorial Day.  A copy of the PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Barlow introduced Senior Pastor Jim Thomas of Fayetteville First Baptist Church, and asked him to
offer the Invocation.  Pastor Thomas offered the Invocation.


Commissioner Ognio led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #9-a







Minutes
May 22, 2014
Page Number 2


PROCLAMATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of MOMS (Moms Offering Moms Support) Club of Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioner Barlow read the recognition of MOMS Club into the record.  Ms. Becky Rosenberg and Ms.
Sara Van Etten gave a PowerPoint presentation, and they spoke about the founding of MOMS Club and of
its current work in Fayette County. Copies of the request and the PowerPoint presentation identified as
“Attachment 2,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


2. Recognition of the Southern Crescent Storytellers.


Commissioner Oddo read the recognition of Southern Crescent Storytellers into the record.  Ms. Anne
Wallace and another representative from the Southern Crescent Storytellers gave a PowerPoint
presentation, and they spoke about the work and contributions of the storytellers.  Copies of the request
and the PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 3,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


3. Recognition of Chinyere Njoku, Leah Banks and Noelle Parker for their state track championship
win.


Chairman Brown recognized Chinyere Njoku, Leah Banks and Noelle Parker for their state track
championship win.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


4. Recognition of the Starr’s Mill Girl’s Tennis Team for winning the AAAAA State Tennis
Championship.


Commissioner McCarty recognized the Starr’s Mill Girl’s Tennis Team for winning the AAAAA State Tennis
Championship.  Coach Ron Mann spoke on behalf of the Tennis Team and of the team’s work toward
winning the state championship.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


5. Recognition of the Starr’s Mill Economic Challenge Team for its third consecutive state
championship win.


The Starr’s Mill Economic Challenge Team had a scheduling conflict and was unable to attend the meeting. 
No action occurred for this item.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
May 22, 2014
Page Number 3


6. Recognition of Distribution Crew Leader Rodney Duncan, of the Fayette County Water System, who
has been awarded as the Distribution Top Operator by the Distribution Systems Committee with the
Georgia Association of Water Professionals.


Water System Director Lee Pope and Water Distribution Manager James Munster recognized Distribution
Crew Leader Rodney Duncan, of the Fayette County Water System, who was awarded as the Distribution
Top Operator by the Distribution Systems Committee with the Georgia Association of Water Professionals. 
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


7. Consideration of Petition No. 1234-14, Victor Clincy, Clincy Enterprises, Owner, request to rezone
property from R-20 Single-family Residential District to C-H Highway Commercial District to develop
Office, Retail, or Educational Uses, with said property consisting of 0.423 acres, being located in
Land Lot 168 of the 5th District, and fronting on Ellis Road.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina read the Introduction to Public Hearings for the Rezoning of
Property into the record and introduced Petition 1234-14 to the Board.  A copy of the Introduction to Public
Hearings for the Rezoning of Property, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


Mr. Victor Clincy spoke to the Board about his request.  No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to the
request.


Mr. Frisina informed the Board that the Planning Commission voted to approve the petition with one
condition and he read the condition into the record. The condition read as follows:


The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim deed for 40 feet as measured
from the centerline of Ellis Road prior to the approval of a Site Plan.  (This condition is to ensure the
provision of adequate right-of-way for future road improvements.)


Chairman Brown asked Mr. Clincy if he would acknowledge his acceptance of the condition, and Mr. Clincy
replied that he accepted the condition.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve Petition No. 1234-14, Victor Clincy, Clincy Enterprises, Owner,
request to rezone property from R-20 Single-family Residential District to C-H Highway Commercial District
to develop Office, Retail, or Educational Uses, with said property consisting of 0.423 acres, being located in
Land Lot 168 of the 5th District, and fronting on Ellis Road.  Commissioners Ognio and McCarty seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request, Ordinance
1234-14, and Resolution 1234-14, identified as “Attachment 9", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.







Action Agenda
May 22, 2014
Page Number 4


CONSENT AGENDA:


8. Approval of staff’s request to adopt proposed fee schedules for Tourist Accommodations and for
Pawnshops, Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve staff’s request to adopt proposed fee schedules for Tourist
Accommodations and for Pawnshops, Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


OLD BUSINESS:


9. Consideration of the April 9, 2014 Joint Meeting Minutes of the Fayette County’s Board of
Commissioners and the City of Fayetteville’s City Council, and consideration of the April 10, 2014
Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Commissioners McCarty and Ognio were not present for
these meetings.


Chairman Brown pointed out that there was a scrivener’s error on the April 9, 2014 minutes that was
corrected and brought to the Board’s attention.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the April 9, 2014 Joint Meeting Minutes of the Fayette County
Board of Commissioners and the City of Fayetteville’s City Council, and to approve the April 10, 2014 Board
of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed. 
The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio abstaining from the vote.


NEW BUSINESS:


10. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Major Anthony Rhodes, of
the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office, to Fayette County’s Department of Family and Children Services
Board to fill an unexpired term beginning May 15, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2016.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Major
Anthony Rhodes, of the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office, to Fayette County’s Department of Family and
Children Services Board to fill an unexpired term beginning May 15, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2016. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  


Major Rhodes thanked the Board for the opportunity to serve on Fayette County’s Department of Family
and Children Services Board.


The motion to approve  the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Major Anthony Rhodes, of
the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office, to Fayette County’s Department of Family and Children Services Board
to fill an unexpired term beginning May 15, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2016 passed unanimously.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 11,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Action Agenda
May 22, 2014
Page Number 5


11. Approval of the May 8, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Commissioner Oddo was
not present for this meeting.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve the May 8, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner Oddo abstaining from the vote.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Frank Gardner: Mr. Frank Gardner commented that the Fayetteville Class of 1954 just held a class reunion, and he
spoke about the changes in the ensuing sixty years since that time.  He spoke about how much Fayette County
meant to him.  He also asked about Lake Peachtree, and he asked if the County was responsible for its repair. 
Chairman Brown replied to Mr. Gardner’s question about the lake.


Eric Brown: Mr. Eric Brown asked when the County would have information on Lake Peachtree.  County
Administrator Steve Rapson replied that he would address the matter under Administrator’s Reports.


Pastor Wiggins: Pastor Wiggins said he had a church by the bowling alley in Fayette County, and that the church
was interested in holding a basketball tournament in order to get the kids involved with something throughout the
summer.  He asked if there was a way to have a park donated to facilitate the tournament.  Chairman Brown
suggested that Pastor Wiggins contact County Administrator Steve Rapson and Recreation Director Anita Godbee
on the matter.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Public Facilities Authority: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that there are more appointments to be
made to the Public Facilities Authority and that a Selection Committee needed to be established.  Chairman Brown
and Commissioner Oddo agreed to be on the Selection Committee with the Public Facilities Authority.


Department of Family and Children Services: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that
another appointment needed to be made to the Department of Family and Children Services Board, since Karen
Spangler’s appointment is expiring, and he asked for a Selection Committee to be established for that appointment. 
Chairman Brown and Commissioner Barlow agreed to serve on the Selection Committee for this appointment.  


Chairman Brown said there was discussion about adding an additional member and he asked what the verdict was
on adding additional members.  County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that there is more to the issue of adding
additional members to the Department of Family and Children Services Board.  He said he was talking to the
Director of the Family and Children Services, reviewing the handbook, and reviewing state law in order to provide an
answer to the Board.  Chairman Brown asked, since it will take about thirty days, and in the event that two additional
members can be added, should it just be made known that the Selection Committee will select the additional two
members so that there is not a third called interview process.  Mr. Rapson replied that the County would have to re-
advertise for the two new positions since it just advertised for the one position whose term is expiring.  He recapped
that the County needed to research whether the DFCS Board could be expanded to seven members, and that the
County Attorney was doing that research.  County Attorney Davenport added that even if the numbers of members
on the DFCS Board could be expanded that the positions were likely job-specific positions, meaning they must be
from law enforcement or other related fields.







Action Agenda
May 22, 2014
Page Number 6


Chairman Brown acknowledged that this issue was more complex than he first understood, and he agreed to
advertise for one position and to reconsider advertising for the potential two additions to the Board at a later time.


ACCG Internship Grant Awards: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that the County had won
three grants from the Association of County Commissioners Georgia: 1) Environmental Management for a GIS
Project, 2) Finance Department for a Financial Analyst, and 3) Board of Commissioners for Public Art.  He stated
that the total award was nearly $5,000.00.  He mentioned that the Chairman would have to sign the paperwork for
those internships.


Lake Peachtree: County Administrator Steve Rapson updated the Board saying the county currently has its
Engineer of Record, CH2M Hill, working with Golder Associates, who are conducting an analysis.  He said the
County had a preliminary meeting with the Environmental Protection Division (EPD) and Safe Dams, and they are
going to review the work that has already been done by Piedmont Associates and that the review may take about
three weeks to complete.  He stated that during that three-week period of time, the EPD may be releasing a
reclassification letter, and if they do issue the reclassification letter then the County will have a 45-day window to
make a final determination.  He recapped that the County could have an idea of where it is headed with the work at
Lake Peachtree within three weeks but that the effort could take as long as sixty days.  He told the Board that he
updated Peachtree City Manager Jim Pennington about this matter earlier in the afternoon, and he concluded that
the County was continuing to move forward with the dredging work for Lake Peachtree.


Hood Avenue: County Administrator Steve Rapson acknowledged that there was debate on whether Hood Avenue
was linked into the recent Fire Consolidation effort, and he wanted to walk through a timeline so everyone would
know what occurred.  He said the County was asked by the City of Fayetteville to conduct the analysis for fire
consolidation, and the county did so.  He said during the final hours of completing the fire consolidation analysis,
prior to meeting with elected officials, one of the things that came up was that there was $1 million in Fire Impact
Fees that were set aside for the City of Fayetteville for its fire services.  He stated that if consolidation had occurred,
then the city would have to give the County the $1 million.  Mr. Rapson said Chairman Brown suggested that if
consolidation did occur, and in an effort to make the City of Fayetteville whole from the citizens’ perspective, that
Fayette County could give the city $1 million for Hood Avenue.  He mentioned that the County had received a
request from the City of Fayetteville for additional funding for Hood Avenue.  Mr. Rapson reminded everyone that
Hood Avenue was one of the original Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) projects, and that it was
made up of two components.  He said about $1.8 million was allocated to the Hood Avenue project for its two
components, however, in December 2010, the previous County Administration entered into an Intergovernmental
Agreement with the City of Fayetteville to increase those funds by approximately $6 million, allocating a little less
than $7.8 million to the Hood Avenue project.  He stated that the Intergovernmental Agreement clearly delineated
that any additional cost overrun would belong to the City of Fayetteville.  Mr. Rapson stated that on January 20,
2014, the County received a letter from Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton requesting that the County contribute
another $952,000.00 for the project, and that is likely how the Chairman thought of the possibility of swapping the
fire funds that the County would receive for funding to the Hood Avenue project.  He stated that this matter was
never linked where, if the fire consolidation effort failed, the money would be withheld from the city for the Hood
Avenue project.  He stated that it was a comprehensive look at how the County would resolve some other issues the
City of Fayetteville would have due to consolidation.  Mr. Rapson stated that Hood Avenue is still one of the projects
that staff is evaluating in how the remaining $29 million in SPLOST funds are utilized.  He mentioned that the County
has about $168 million in projects that remain that have not been billed.  He added that there were no formal
commitments one way or another between the County and the City of Fayetteville concerning Hood Avenue, but that
this matter was based off of a comprehensive review.  Mr. Rapson then read the following portion of the
Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville: The city agrees that it will
complete the entire project that this subject [Hood Avenue] of this agreement should the cost of the acquisition of
right-of-way, construction materials, and labor exceed $7,774,344.00, the city shall pay for any of these additional







Action Agenda
May 22, 2014
Page Number 7


costs.  Mr. Rapson stated that the mayor’s letter requested $627,000 for right-of-way acquisition and another
$325,000.00 for construction, but part of the reason the County has not moved forward on Hood Avenue is because
it is abiding by the Intergovernmental Agreement.


Chairman Brown added that had the Fire Consolidation effort has passed, meaning the City had to hand
approximately $1 million in Fire Impact Fees to the County, then the County’s intention was to not leave the City of
Fayetteville in a lurch.  He said the intention was to make the consolidation proposal as fair as possible.  Mr. Rapson
replied that the decision would have rested with the Board of Commissioners, meaning it did not matter what the
Chairman said at that point.


Memorial Day: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that the County was going to minimum
staffing at 1:00 p.m. in recognition of Memorial Day.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


There was no Attorney’s Report.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio congratulated Chairman Steve Brown for his reelection to the Fayette
County Board of Commissioners.  He also congratulated the high school students who are graduating and entering a
new part of their lives.


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow asked Reporter Ben Nelms of The Citizen newspaper if he took
copious notes during Mr. Rapson’s report on Hood Avenue so that an article could be written that would alleviate
recent misunderstandings.  


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty addressed the Southern Crescent Storytellers by telling of his
chance meeting with Jerry Reed and Ray Stevens and the origin of the song Olds-Mo-Williams.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo congratulated Chairman Brown and the other candidates who won their
elections.  He also congratulated the other candidates who did not win since it takes guts to stand for what you
believe but come up short.  Commissioner Oddo spoke about his mother-in-law’s illness and recent passing, and he
said that his family greatly appreciated the prayers that were offered on her and his family’s behalf.  He thanked
everyone for their understanding and prayers.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown thanked everyone for congratulating him, and he thanked the number of
volunteers who helped him with his campaign.  He said one of the most humbling experiences he had was seeing
three volunteers waiving for three hours in the pouring rain along Highway 74 holding his campaign signs. He said it
was very humbling to have people who think that much of you to do something like that, and that it meant a lot to
him.  He wished the other candidates well and wished them well in their future endeavors.  He mentioned that he
has worked on the interchange at Highway 74 and Interstate 85 since 2002, and that his reelection meant that he
might actually see the project completed.  He said he was working on getting the right-of-way money, and he hoped
the project would be completed before he left office.  He congratulated the graduates and mentioned his daughter
was among the graduating class.  He asked for prayers for his daughter as she enters the newest phase of her life. 
He also congratulated the City of Fayetteville and the City of Peachtree City which were recently ranked as among







Action Agenda
May 22, 2014
Page Number 8


the top ten places to live in the State of Georgia.  He thought it was great to know that the people were living in a
county that has continually been recognized as one of the most quality and family-friendly places to live.  He said
many places talk about quality of life, but that Fayetteville and Peachtree City have the awards to prove it. 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


There was no Executive Session.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the May 22, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioners
Barlow and Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The May 22, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 12th day of June 2014.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


Special Called Budget Meeting


June 4, 2014


 3:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in a Special Called Budget Meeting on June 4, 2014 at


3:00 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,


Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


Tameca White, Deputy County Clerk


Mary Parrott, Chief Financial Officer
________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order


Chairman Brown called the June 4, 2014 Special Called Budget Meeting to order at 3:01 p.m.


Chairman Brown stated that the Commissioners had an eight-inch budget book that had just been provided to the


Board, and he stated that questions and comments would be allowed after the presentation.


Chairman Brown moved to approve the Agenda as written.  Commissioners Ognio and McCarty seconded the


motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


1. County Administrator Steve Rapson will provide information regarding the 2015 budget.


County Administrator Steve Rapson began his presentation by having members of the Finance staff


introduce themselves to the Board, and he credited the Finance staff for working with the Elected Officials,


Constitutional Officers, and Department Heads for working together to produce the proposed Fiscal Year


2015 budget.


Mr. Rapson gave a PowerPoint presentation, entitled Fayette County, GA: FY2015 Budget Presentation, to


the Board concerning the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 budget and periodically answered questions from the


Board members throughout his presentation.  The presentation lasted for approximately one hour and


fourteen minutes.  A copy of the PowerPoint document, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes


and is made an official part hereof.



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #9-b







Minutes
June 4, 2014
Page Number 2


Note: At 4:08 p.m., there was an electrical outage that prevented continued recording of the meeting and


did not allow for the meeting to be saved to LiveStream.


2. Questions and Answers


Chairman Brown opened the floor for questions but no questions were asked.


3. Closing Comments


Chairman Brown thanked Mr. Rapson and staff for their work on the proposed budget.  No other comments


were made.


Adjournment


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the June 4,  2014 Board of Commissioners Special Called Budget


Meeting.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The June 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners Special Called Budget Meeting adjourned at 4:17 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 12th day of June 2014.


___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


June 12, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Ms. Katie Wilson, of Starr’s Mill High School, who has been
named Girls Athlete of the Year by the Fayette Daily News. 


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail
Alcohol, Beer and Wine License (License #13-000299) from Gregory Scott
St. John to Karim Dodhia of Marvel Group, LLC, doing business as DJ’s
One Stop Shop, which is located at 1850 South Highway 85, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


3. Public Hearing on the County’s proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year
2015 which begins July 1, 2014 and ends June 30, 2015.


CONSENT AGENDA:


4. Approval of a request to provide a $5,000.00 local salary supplement for
the Sheriff consistent with local salary supplements provided to other
Constitutional Officers.


5. Approval of staff’s request to appoint Assistant Fire Chief Kevin Baggett as
the representative from Peachtree City’s Fire and Emergency Services to
the West Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical Services Council for a
two-year term that will begin on July 1, 2014 and will expire on June 30,
2016.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award annual Bid #904 as a split bid
to Martin Marietta Aggregates for the purchase of surge stone and rip rap
types 1 & 3, and to Hanson’s Aggregates for the purchase of GAB #4, #5,
#57, #89 and #810 stone, and to Stephens Road & Dirt for the purchase of
#34, #357 and M-10 screenings, for Fiscal Year 2015, in an amount not to
exceed $250,672.00.


7. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to allow the exchange
of meters between Mr. Newhart’s old property at 600 Janice Drive and the
current property he owns at 115 Gingercake Drive at no cost to Mr.
Newhart.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
June 12, 2014
Page Number 2


8. Approval of Chairman Steve Brown’s recommendation to amend Ordinance 2014-02 by revising White
Lining standards to those reflected in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the “Tolerance Zone”
from 24 inches to 18 inches and other minor modifications.


9. Approval of the May 22, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes and the June 4, 2014 Board of
Commissioners Special Called Budget Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


10. Consideration of the Water System’s recommendation to approve the Professional Services Task Order
(Task 1) from CH2M Hill, in the amount of $370,000.00, for design services of capital improvements at the
Crosstown Water Treatment Plant.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration Steven Rapson


Approval of a request to provide a $5,000.00 local salary supplement for the Sheriff consistent with local salary supplements provided to 
other Constitutional Officers. 


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners passed a resolution on August 5, 1998 to grant a local salary supplement of 10% of the 
base salary up to a $5,000.00 maximum for Constitutional Officers. In addition, a local expense supplement is provided based upon the 
county's population - currently $3,600.00 / year.  
 
While the local expense supplement is provided to all constitutional officers, the Sheriff local salary supplement ended when Sheriff Babb 
took office. The previous Sheriff had a local salary supplement of $13,939.85 and this request is for a $5,000.00 local salary supplement 
to be consistent with the standing local salary supplements provided for other Constitutional Officers.  
 
Note: Local supplements once granted remain in effect with that constitutional officer through the remainder of that person’s term of office 
and cannot be rescinded for both the local salary and expense supplement.  
 
 


Approval of a request to provide a $5,000.00 local salary supplement for the Sheriff consistent with local salary supplements provided to 
other Constitutional Officers.


There is sufficient salary related savings in the Sheriff's Department to fund this request and has no financial impact to the budget. 


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Effective date of local salary supplement will be July 1, 2014.


ConsentThursday, June 12, 2014



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #4












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs


Consideration of staff's recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine License (License #13-000299) from 


Gregory Scott St. John to Karim Dodhia of Marvel Group, LLC, doing business as DJ's One Stop, which is located at 1850 South 


Highway 85, Fayetteville, Georgia.


The Applicant has met all requirements as required in the County Code, and the applicant has been approved by the Code Enforcement 


Department.  The 2014 license is in good standing as it was issued on October 1, 2013. 


 


There are no outstanding violations. 


 


Consideration of staff's recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine License (License #13-000299) from 


Gregory Scott St. John to Karim Dodhia of Marvel Group, LLC, doing business as DJ's One Stop, which is located at 1850 South 


Highway 85, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 12, 2014 Public Hearing



FJones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #2









		Code Enforcement- License Transfer Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- License Transfer Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Proclamation/Recognition #1


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of Ms. Katie Wilson, of Starr's Mill High School, who has been named Girls Athlete of the Year by the Fayette Daily News.


Ms. Katie Wilson has been named as the Girls Athlete of the Year by the Fayette Daily News. 


 


Ms. Wilson is the first basketball player (either girl or boy) who broke the 1,000 career point plateau in school  history.  She has been 


recognized as the All-County Girls Basketball Player of the Year and is a member of the All-County Girls First Team.  As a senior, she 


averaged 16 points and five assists a game. 


 


Ms. Wilson is also a member of the All-County Girls Lacrosse Team. 


 


Ms. Wilson is planning to study engineering at Mississippi State University. 


 


Mr. Christopher Dunn, Sports Editor for Fayette Newspapers, will attend the meeting and will introduce Ms. Wilson to the Board of 


Commissioners.


Recognition of Ms. Katie Wilson of Starr's Mill High School who has been named Girls Athlete of the Year by the Fayette Daily News.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 12, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Administration / Finance Steve Rapson / Mary Parrott


Public Hearing on the County's proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2015 which begins July 1, 2014 and ends June 30, 2015.


On June 4, 2014, the Board of Commissioners met with county staff to review the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Budget.  This is the first of 


two public hearings on the proposed budget, after which the Board will vote on the budget.  Details of the budget are available for public 


review.  Input is welcome. 


 


The second public hearing is scheduled for Thursday, June 26, after which the Board is expected to vote. 


 


See attached information.


No action required.  At the end of the second public hearing on June 26, 2014, the Board will vote on the adoption of the proposed 


County annual budget.


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 12, 2014 Public Hearing



FJones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #3







FY2015 Budget Presentation


June 4, 2014


1







Economic Outlook 
Survey State and Local Government Workforce Trends:


2012 2013 2014
� Workforce shrunk since 2008 downturn economy    68%       61%    58%


� Shift Healthcare costs to employees/retirees            62% 61%   67%


� Pay Freezes                                                        51%       33%       7%        


� Hiring Freezes                                                     42%      27%     13%


� Layoffs 28%    18%   10%


� Raising employee contribution for retirement           27%   34%     27%


� 66% hired employees in the past year compared to 11% in 2012


� 32% hired contract or temporary employees 


� 37% provided broad-based pay increases


2







30% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%


How to manage workload when current staff is at their limit and
new staff cannot be hired


Reducing employee health care costs


Public perception of government workers


Competitive compensation package


Retaining staff needed for core services


Employee morale


Workforce succession planning


Staff development


Recruiting and retaining qualified personnel with needed skills
to public service


Important


Somewhat
Important


Not
Important


Survey State and Local Government 
Workforce Issues







Budget Principles


� Revenues are conservatively projected based on an objective, analytical 
process of detailed trending.


� One-time revenues are not used to fund current expenditures thus 
avoiding pursuing short-term benefits at the risk of creating future 
funding issues.


� Only current revenues are used to pay current expenditures so there is 
not a “built-in increase” for ongoing expenditures.


� There is a budgetary link between capital and operating budgets to 
identify and determine if ongoing expenses can be funded through the 
operating budget before the project is placed into service. 


4







Planning Assumptions
� No Deficit Budgeting (no use of unassigned fund balance)


� Continued Commitment to Outstanding Customer Service


� No Property Tax Increase while maintaining Superior Service Delivery 


� Provide County Employees with a 2.0% cost of living adjustment 
(COLA), the last COLA adjustment was given in FY 2008


� Maintain Employee Benefits and build Medical Reserves 
� Medical/Dental/Vision Health Insurance / Funding Stop Loss, CIGNA Run-out, 


Large Claims, Health Stabilization Fund


� Defined Contribution matched up to 2.5% 


� Define Benefit funded at 1.3% vs the 0.6% recommended


� Incentive of 2% of salary one-time payment to County Employees
� Same level of service with less employees


� Incentive contingent upon meeting budget expectations


� Continue Internship Program


5







Employee Benefit Highlights
� Continue to offer two (2) Choices for Medical Plan Coverage:


� Traditional Open Access POS Plan 


� HSA (Health Savings Account)


� Employee Only $500


� Employee/Spouse or Child(ren) $750


� Family $1,000


� No Healthcare Plan changes this year: no increase to the premiums, Rx 
cost, or standard deductibles.


� Health Advocate available for employees to call and escalate claims issues


� Basic Life, Accidental Death & Disability, and long-term disability plan at 
no cost to employees. 


� Employee Benefit Summary detailing healthcare and retirement benefits. 


� Quarterly Health Statement detailing year-to-date deductibles, claim 
activity and out-of-pocket expenses for the quarter. 


� Implemented Non-Tobacco User Discounts and Wellness Initiatives.


� Healthcare plan is no longer running at a deficit; plan changes have 
eliminated healthcare shortfalls. 


6







7


FY2015 Fund Balance Projections
Estimated 


Fund Balance 


6/30/14


FY 2015 


Revenues


FY 2015 


Expenditures


FY2015 Impact 


to Fund 


Balance


Projected 


Fund Balance 


6/30/15


Governmental Funds


100 General Fund 31,763,190$     47,303,119$ 46,772,641$    530,478$         32,293,668$    


Special Revenue Funds


215 E911 700,709              3,319,200      2,970,871         348,329           1,049,038        


270 Fire Services 2,392,352          8,520,900      8,469,346         51,554              2,443,906        


272 Emergency Medical Services 1,766,666          3,093,450      3,079,278         14,172              1,780,838        


205 Law Library Surcharge 62,940                62,160            62,160               -                         62,940              


210 State Confiscated Property 42,008                17,900            17,900               -                         42,008              


216 Jail Surcharge 123,488              310,000         310,000            -                         123,488            


217 Juvenile Supervision Surcharge 103,670              16,000            24,908               (8,908)              94,762              


218 Victims Assistance Surcharge 870                      129,395         129,395            -                         870                    


219 Drug Abuse & Treatment Surcharge 191,925              352,256         352,256            -                         191,925            


271 Street Lights 183,713              325,000         325,000            -                         183,713            


Total Special Revenue Funds 5,568,341          16,146,261   15,741,114      405,147           5,973,488        


Capital/CIP Projects- Governmental 11,290,671        -                       5,836,330         (5,836,330)      5,454,341        


Total Governmental Funds 48,622,202$     63,449,380$ 68,350,085$    (4,900,705)$    43,721,497$    


Enterprise Funds


505 Water System Net Position M & O 77,907,596        15,977,214   15,977,214      -                         


Water System CIP 150,000            (150,000)          


Water System Bond Projects 5,676,000         (5,676,000)      


Net position 72,081,596      


508 Stormwater  Net Position M & O 595,737              550,000         550,000            -                         


Stormwater CIP 2,461,145      2,912,014         (450,869)          


Net position 144,868            


540 Solid Waste & Recycling Net Position 1,175,930          78,150            168,534            (90,384)            1,085,546        


Total Enterprise Funds 79,679,263$     19,066,509$ 25,433,762$    (6,367,253)      73,312,010      


Vehicle/Equipment Replacement 7,000,691          895,000         1,288,116         (393,116)          6,607,575        


Total All Budgeted Funds 135,302,155$   83,410,889$ 95,071,963$    (11,661,074)$ 123,641,081$ 


Budgeted Funds







General Fund Revenues


8


Taxes
61.1%Local Option Sales 


Tax
22.2%


License/Permits
2.9%


Intergovernmental
3.4%


Charges for 
Services
6.3%


Fines/Forfeitures
2.9%


Other Revenues
0.7%


Other Financing
Sources
0.5%







General Fund Expenditures


9


Personnel Costs
63.5%


Purchases/ 
Contracts
16.3%


Supplies
10.1%


Capital Outlays
0.3%


Outside Agencies
1.6%


Debt Service
7.1%


Other Financing 
Use
1.1%







General Fund Personnel Costs


10


Salaries
78.1%


FICA/Medicare
5.5%


Benefit Match
2.3%


Medical
11.6%


Dental/Vision
0.7%


Other Benefits
1.8%







E911 Fund Revenues


11


Taxes
27.7%


Charges for 
Services
72.3%







E911 Fund Expenditures


12


Personnel 
Costs
63.7%


Purchases/  
Contracts
29.7%


Supplies
2.4%


Capital 
Outlays
0.5%


Administrative 
Costs
3.7%







E911 Fund Personnel Costs 


13


Salaries
79.7%


FICA/Medicare
5.7%


Benefit Match
2.1% Medical


11.3%


Dental/ Vision
0.7%


Other Benefits
0.5%







Fire Fund Revenues


14


Taxes
97.0%


Charges for 
Services
2.3%


Other 
Revenues
0.7%







Fire Fund Expenditures


15


Personnel 
Costs
87.4%


Purchases/  
Contracts
2.4%


Supplies
3.3%


Capital 
Outlays
0.2%


Other 
Financing Use


3.0%
Administrative 


Costs
3.7%







Fire Fund Personnel Costs


16


Salaries
78.7%


FICA/Medicare
5.6%


Benefit Match
2.4% Medical


12.2%


Dental/ Vision
0.7% Other Benefits


0.4%







EMS Fund Revenues


17


Taxes
40.0%


Charges for 
Services
60.0%







EMS Fund Expenditures


18


Personnel Costs
77.8%


Purchases/  
Contracts
6.3%


Supplies
7.6%


Capital Outlays
0.3%


Other Financing 
Use
3.8%


Administrative 
Costs
4.2%







EMS Fund Personnel Costs 


19


Salaries
77.6%


Fica/Medicare
5.5%


Benefit Match
2.4% Medical


13.3%


Dental/ Vision
0.8% Other Benefits


0.4%







Personnel Changes 
� Funding is included for 723.089 FTEs County Wide


� 710 full-time 


� 30 part-time positions equivalent to 13.089 FTEs


� FTE count is up 0.5%, 2.775 net, from 2014


� 4.0 FTE eliminations
� Buildings & Grounds Maintenance 2.0 - Reorganization


� Water System 2.0 - Reorganization


� 6.775 New positions
� Engineering 2.0      SPLOST            


� Finance (Grants)                      1.0       Grants Analyst (Revenue Funded)


� Human Resources 0.5       Part-time Position


� Information Systems               1.0       Network Administrator (FY2014 Budget)


� Solicitor 0.275       More hours for Control Terminal Operator


� Permits & Inspections            2.0      Permit Inspectors – Pinewood IGA Fayetteville


20







Personnel Changes (continued)


� Funding included for four (4) promotions 


� Finance – Financial Analyst to Senior Financial Analyst


� Tax Assessor – Appraiser II to Appraiser III (certification)


� Assistant Director and Building Inspector III (Pinewood)


� Personnel Transfers


� Finance – Business Systems Analyst to Information Systems


� Sheriff


� Administration           1.0


� CID (5.0)


� Field Operations        4.0


21







Water System Reorganization  


� Funding is included for 63.0 FTEs


� FTE count is down 3.1% or (2.0) FTE, from 2014  


� 4.0 FTE eliminations
� Water Plant Maint. Workers 3.0


� Plant Operator III 1.0


� 3.0 FTE reclassification
� Water Plant Maint. Worker reclassed Marshal (Sheriff FY2013) 1.0


� Plant Operator III reclassed Plant Operator I 2.0


� 2.0 New positions
� Water Plant Maint. Manager 1.0


� Customer Service Rep 1.0


22







Maintenance & Operations
Significant operational budget considerations:


� Employee Medical – Funded $450,000 in the Health Stabilization Fund for 
the purposes of medical rate stabilization and to cover potential future major 
medical claims.


� Communication Services – Upgrade of telephone technology County-wide 
and rate negotiations with the County’s vendor resulted in a savings of 
$62,000 or 12%. 


� Inmate medical/meals – Reduction in the number of inmates housed at 
the County’s jail reduces costs of inmate medical claims by $75,000 in the 
General Fund and costs of inmate meals by $11,000 in the Jail Surcharge 
Fund. 


23







Maintenance & Operations


Significant operational budget considerations (continued) :


� Cost of Living Adjustment – Additional personnel costs of $707,844 for a 
2.0% COLA for County employees is included in the budget 
recommendation. 


� Defined Benefit Plan – 2014 required contribution is 0.0% ; recommended 
contribution is 0.6%; budget includes funding at 1.3%, twice the 
recommended level.


� Employee Wellness – funded $15,000 to continue the successful weight 
watchers’ program started last year. 


� Travel/Training – increased support for employee training by 25%, 
$65,000 across all departments.


24







Maintenance & Operations


Significant operational budget considerations (continued) :


� Lawn Service – increased budget  by $25,000 for additional grass cutting at 
Kenwood Park. 


� Outside Agency budgets held flat with FY2014


� District Attorney – considering conversion of seven (7) State employees 
to County employees to take advantage of the County’s lower benefit cost.


� Public Defender – considering conversion of one (1) State employee to 
County employee to take advantage of the County’s lower benefit cost.


� Development Authority – requested $225,000, recommending $100,000.


� School Resource Officers – re-negotiated with Board of Education to 
recoup personnel cost of this shared program. 


25







Vehicle and Heavy 
Equipment Replacement


Comprehensive analysis of all County’s vehicles and heavy equipment was 
conducted to ensure the timely and appropriate replacement of those assets 
required for daily operations. 


This analysis entailed the following:


� Acquisition cost, current replacement pricing, inflation factors, necessity of 
replacement and timing of replacement.  


� A thirty (30) year funding schedule was developed to aid in determining an 
annual funding requirement for each asset. 


� Annual funding for vehicle/heavy equipment replacement has been included 
with this budget as follows:


� General Fund $ 530,000 ($400k vehicles & $130k equipment)


� Fire Fund $ 250,000


� EMS Fund $ 115,000


26







General Fund Balance
Financial Projection – FY2014


Fund Balance FY 2013 FY2014


Non-spendable $      148,647 $     0


Committed to:


Stabilization Fund $  10,971,735 $ 11,693,160


Assigned to:


Emergencies $ 2,000,000  $  2,000,000


Stormwater Loan $ 0              $  2,000,000


Capital $        27,149    $      277,295


CIP $  9,131,400   $  8,526,994


Unassigned: $  6,893,001 $   7,265,741


Total Fund Balance      $  29,171,932  $ 31,763,190
27







28


Governmental Funds
Capital Improvement Program


Capital Expenditures
Vehicles / Equipment







29


Capital Expenditures/CIP – As Proposed
All Funds


 Funding Sources 


 Total 5 Year 


CIP Plan  FY 2015 


 2016-2019 


Total  Future 


Assigned General Fund Balance - Capital projects 8,526,994$    3,474,558$        5,052,436$    680,000$          


Restricted E911 Fund Balance - Special programs 373,185         373,185            -                   -                       


Restricted Fire Fund Balance - Special programs 100,000         100,000            -                   3,125,000         


Restricted EMS Fund Balance - Special programs 22,200           10,200              12,000           -                       


361 CJC Bond Proceeds 1,501,092      1,501,092         -                   -                       


LMIG 767,200         100,000            667,200         -                       


Total Governmental Funds CIP 11,290,671    5,559,035         5,731,636      3,805,000         


Stormwater 912,014         912,014            -                   -                       


Stormwater - General Fund Loan 2,000,000      2,000,000         -                   -                       


Water System 1,400,000      150,000            1,250,000      9,000,000         


Water System Bond Projects 5,676,000      5,676,000         -                   -                       


Total Enterprise Funds CIP 9,988,014      8,738,014         1,250,000      9,000,000         


Capital Expenditures - Governmental 277,295         277,295            -                   -                       


Total Capital Expenditures/CIP 21,555,980    14,574,344        6,981,636      12,805,000        







30


CIP Funding Sources – Governmental Funds


 Funding Sources 


 Total 5 Year 


CIP Plan  FY 2015 


 2016-2019 


Total  Future 


Assigned General Fund Balance - Capital projects 8,526,994$    3,474,558$        5,052,436$    680,000$          


Restricted E911 Fund Balance - Special programs 373,185         373,185            -                   -                       


Restricted Fire Fund Balance - Special programs 100,000         100,000            -                   3,125,000         


Restricted EMS Fund Balance - Special programs 22,200           10,200              12,000           -                       


361 CJC Bond Proceeds 1,501,092      1,501,092         -                   -                       


LMIG 767,200         100,000            667,200         -                       


Total Governmental Funds CIP 11,290,671    5,559,035         5,731,636      3,805,000         







Capital Improvement Program – As Proposed


31


FY 2015 Budget - Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Plan


# of 


Projects Dept Project Description


 Total 5 Year 


CIP Plan  FY 2015 


 2016-2019 


Total  Future 


1 Bldg & Grounds Public Safety Training Facility 1,250,000      150,000         1,100,000      -                    


2 Bldg & Grounds Links - Building Renovation          150,000          150,000 -                   -                    


3 Bldg & Grounds Countywide - Public Art            50,000            50,000 -                   -                    


4 Bldg & Grounds Library Expansion          100,000          100,000 -                   -                    


5 Bldg & Grounds Historic Courthouse - Electrical Grid System            25,000            25,000 -                   -                    


6 Bldg & Grounds Senior Center - Design Expansion Project 15,600           15,600           -                   -                    


7 Bldg & Grounds Senior Center - Renovation Expansion Project 15,000           15,000           -                   -                    


8 Bldg & Grounds Stonewall - Generator Fencing Project 5,000            5,000             -                   -                    


9 Bldg & Grounds Stonewall Admin Bldg - Roller shades 32,600           32,600           -                   -                    


10 Bldg & Grounds Stonewall Admin Bldg Refurbishment project 179,200         -                    179,200         -                    


11 Bldg & Grounds Re-roofing Historic Courthouse 297,450         297,450         -                   -                    


Total - Bldg & Grounds 2,119,850      840,650         1,279,200      -                    


12 EMA Software update for weather warning siren system 133,000         133,000         -                   -                    


13 EMA EOC - E911 Remote Location Project 100,000         100,000         -                   -                    


14 EMA


Hardware update for weather warning siren system (7 


sirens) 254,436         127,000         127,436         45,000           


Total - EMA 487,436         360,000         127,436         45,000           







32


Capital Improvement Program – As Proposed


FY 2015 Budget - Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Plan


# of 


Projects Dept Project Description


 Total 5 Year 


CIP Plan  FY 2015 


 2016-2019 


Total  Future 


15 Info systems Public Works - Project Tracking SW 45,000           45,000              -                   -                       


16 Info systems Audio/Video upgrade Project 50,000           50,000              -                   -                       


17 Info systems Aerial Photography 235,000                     115,000 120,000                       30,000 


18 Info systems


Systemwide - Redesign infrastructure to better support 


business continuity 50,000           50,000              -                   -                       


19 Info systems


Systemwide - Consolidate Enterprise eliminating 


complexity two datacenters only 35,000           35,000              -                   -                       


20 Info systems Permiting - Expand EnerGov 35,000           35,000              -                   -                       


21 Info systems


Tax Assessor - Purchase/Install Marshall & Swift cost 


tables to the current Tyler/CLT System 25,000           25,000              -                   -                       


22 Info systems


Microsoft Enterprise Agreement for Exchange - Cloud 


Office 365 - Desktop/Server 440,000         100,000            340,000         70,000              


23 Info systems Virtualization and PC Re-purposing w/Support 122,200         5,200                117,000         40,000              


24 Info systems Equipment Refresh Desktops 273,000         73,000              200,000         35,000              


25 Info systems Monitor Refresh 67,000           20,000              47,000           10,000              


26 Info systems Equipment Refresh Network 240,000         20,000              220,000         50,000              


27 Info systems Equipment Refresh Server & Data Storage 260,000         50,000              210,000         50,000              


28 Info systems Systemwide Technology Staffing Multiplier 250,000         50,000              200,000         50,000              


Total - Info Systems 2,127,200      673,200            1,454,000      335,000            







33


Capital Improvement Program – As Proposed


FY 2015 Budget - Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Plan


# of 


Projects Dept Project Description


 Total 5 Year 


CIP Plan  FY 2015 


 2016-2019 


Total  Future 


29 Recreation Justice Center Park Project 125,000         125,000         -                   -                    


30 Recreation Brooks Pk - Parking lot addition 45,000           45,000           -                   -                    


31 Recreation All Parks - Entrance sign replacement 31,500           31,500           -                   -                    


32 Recreation All Parks - Solar waste compactors 16,000           16,000           -                   -                    


33 Recreation All Parks - Installation of security cameras 100,000         100,000         -                   -                    


34 Recreation Kenwood Pk - Park Improvements 500,000         250,000         250,000         -                    


35 Recreation Kiwanis Pk - Athletic field lighting refurbishment 350,000         75,000           275,000         100,000         


36 Recreation McCurry Pk - Softball field lighing refurbishment 125,000         125,000         -                   -                    


37 Recreation McCurry Pk - Soccer field lighting refurbishment 375,000         -                    375,000         125,000         


38 Recreation McCurry Pk - Football/Soccer field lighting refurbishment 225,000         -                    225,000         -                    


39 Recreation McCurry Pk - Multi-purpose fields light installation 300,000         -                    300,000         -                    


40 Recreation


McCurry Pk - Installation of splash pad along with all the 


site amenities 150,000         150,000         -                   -                    


41 Recreation McCurry Pk - Re-crowning of soccer field -                   -                    -                   75,000           


42 Recreation Multi-purpose trails 100,000         -                    100,000         -                    


43 Recreation Land acquisition 500,000         -                    500,000         -                    


Total - Recreation 2,942,500      917,500         2,025,000      300,000         


44 Road Quail Hollow Subdivision Full Depth Recycling 297,800         297,800         -                   -                    


45 Road Redwine Rd and Starrs Mill Multi-Use Path 767,200         100,000         667,200         -                    


46 Road Redwine Rd and Starrs Mill Multi-Use Path 191,800         25,000           166,800         -                    


Total - Road 1,256,800      422,800         834,000         -                    







34


Capital Improvement Program – As Proposed


FY 2015 Budget - Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Plan


# of 


Projects Dept Project Description


 Total 5 Year 


CIP Plan  FY 2015 


 2016-2019 


Total  Future 


47 Sheriff-Jail Old Jail Renovation 360,408         360,408         -                   -                    


48 Sheriff-Jail Old Jail Renovation 1,501,092      1,501,092      -                   -                    


Total - Sheriff 1,861,500      1,861,500      -                   -                    


49 E911 9-1-1 Phone System 373,185         373,185         -                   -                    


50 Fire Reconstruction of Fire Station #2 -                   -                    -                   2,000,000      


51 Fire SCBA - Breathing Apparatus -                   -                    -                   825,000         


52 Fire Fire Station Renovations 100,000         100,000         -                   -                    


53 Fire Addition/Renovation of Fire Station #11 (Flat Creek Rd) -                   -                    -                   300,000         


Total - Fire 100,000         100,000         -                   3,125,000      


54 EMS  Stretchers (2) 22,200           10,200           12,000           -                    







35


Total Capital Expenditures – As Proposed
# of 


Projects Dept


Funding 


Source Project Description Cost


1 Bldg & Grounds General Fund Stonewall  Admin Bldg - Seal and Re-stripe Parking Lot 22,850$     


2 Bldg & Grounds General Fund Senior Center - Pressure Wash & Paint Exterior 23,400        


3 Bldg & Grounds General Fund Exterior Refurbishment of Historic Courthouse 16,820        


Total - Bldg & Grounds 63,070$     


4 Recreation General Fund Kiwanis Pk - Parking lot resurfacing 49,000$     


5 Recreation General Fund Kiwanis Pk - Tennis court re-surfacing 15,000        


6 Recreation General Fund All  Parks - Turfplane repair for softball/baseball/soccer fields 26,000        


Total - Recreation 90,000$     


7 Emergency 911 E911 Fund Emergency Fire Dispatch Certification 82,000$     


8 Fire services Fire Fund Replacement Schedule for Firefighter Turnout Gear 42,225$     


TOTAL 277,295$   







FY 2015 Budget – Vehicles


36


Department Description Mileage* Acq Cost Description Cost Dept Cost


Engineering 1999 JEEP CHEROKEE 129,003 $21,110 2014 Ford Expedition $25,537 $25,537


Recreation 1996 GMC RALLY VAN - 3500 122,986 $19,669 Ford E-350 (15 Passenger Van) $25,239 $25,239


Permits & Insp 2002 FORD F-150 PICKUP TRUCK 178,506    $20,970 2014 F-150 Pickup $18,352 $18,352


Roads - Mowing Crew 1996 FORD F-350 CREW CAB PICKUP 170,474    $19,855 FORD F-250 PICKUP-crew cab $24,358


Roads - Maintenance Crew 1996 FORD F-350 CREW CAB PICKUP 148,838    $19,855 FORD F-250 PICKUP-crew cab $24,358


Roads - Paving Crew 2004 CHEVROLET 1500 4X4 155,217    $23,011 FORD F-250 PICKUP-crew cab $24,358 $73,074


Sheriff - Field Op 2001 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 105,590    $16,782 2014 Dodge Charger V8 $30,072


Sheriff - Field Op 2005 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 100,562    $22,310 2014 Dodge Charger V8 $30,072


Sheriff - Field Op 2007 DODGE CHARGER 107,543    $23,771 2014 Caprice 6.0L $34,281


Sheriff - Field Op 2007 DODGE CHARGER 120,083    $21,348 2014 Caprice 6.0L $34,281


Sheriff - Field Op 2008 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 102,903    $20,745 2014 Caprice 6.0L $34,281


Sheriff - Field Op 2008 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 105,920    $21,188 2014 Dodge Charger V8 $30,072


Sheriff - Field Op 2008 DODGE CHARGER 96,095      $21,348 2014 Dodge Charger V8 $30,072


Sheriff - Field Op 2008 DODGE CHARGER SXT 108,625    $21,799 2014 Dodge Charger V8 $30,072


Sheriff - Field Op 2008 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 107,934    $21,188 2014 Dodge Charger V8 $30,072


Sheriff - Field Op 2008 DODGE CHARGER 98,243      $21,348 2014 Dodge Charger V8 $30,072


Sheriff - Field Op 2008 DODGE CHARGER 91,400      $21,348 2014 Dodge Charger V8 $30,072 $343,418


VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND TOTAL $485,620


Department Description Mileage* Acq Cost Description Cost Dept Cost


Road Department N/A N/A N/A FORD F-450 PICKUP TRUCK $45,000 $45,000


$45,000


Replacement Vehicle


New Vehicles


NEW VEHICLE TOTAL







37


FY 2015 Budget – Heavy Equipment


Department Description Mileage* Acq Cost Description Cost Dept Cost


Building & Grounds 1985 JOHN DEERE TRACTOR - 318 235 $4,375 JOHN DEERE TRACTOR X300 -42 inch deck $3,000


Building & Grounds JOHN DEERE TRACTOR Model 855 137 $7,714 JOHN DEERE TRACTOR - Model 30-32 $18,500


Building & Grounds 1999 GRASSHOPPER MOWER NF $11,070 GRASSHOPPER MOWER without bagger $8,161


Building & Grounds 1999 GRASSHOPPER MOWER NF $11,070 GRASSHOPPER MOWER with bagger $9,993


Building & Grounds 1994 TRACTOR, FORD - model 3230 3,690 $12,301 2014 FORD TRACTOR $18,500 $58,154


Road Department TRUCK CRANE, HYDRAULIC - 4004EH 2003 NF $10,445 TRUCK CRANE, HYDRAULIC 4004EH 16 ft. $14,500


Road Department DOUBLE DRUM ROLLER, LEE BOY 400 264 $26,500 DOUBLE DRUM ROLLER, LEE BOY 400 W/O Towing $49,500


Road Department PAVER, ROADTEC RP190 (LeeBoy 8616) 3,888 $268,847 PAVER, ROADTEC RP190 (LeeBoy 8616) $197,500


Road Department COMPACTOR, VIBRATORY DD65 (Sakai SW652-1) 1,042 $60,137 COMPACTOR, VIBRATORY DD65 (Sakai SW652-1) $93,350 $354,850


Fire SNAPPER MOWER SN # 11367683 NF $2,028 HUSTLER X-ONE MOWER $7,919


Fire SNAPPER MOWER SN # 11367685 NF $2,002 HUSTLER X-ONE MOWER $7,919 $15,838


EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND TOTAL $428,842


Department Description Mileage* Acq Cost Description Cost Dept Cost


Road Department N/A N/A N/A SLIDE-IN SALE SPREADER WITH SNOW PLOW $33,000


Road Department N/A N/A N/A GRASS TRACTOR WITH BOOM MOWER $120,000


Road Department N/A N/A N/A MC855SDT VAC-TRON MOUNTED UNIT $100,000


Road Department N/A N/A N/A SURVEYING EQUIPMENT/TRAFFIC COUNTERS $18,000


Road Department N/A N/A N/A PORTABLE MATERIAL SCREENER $39,500 $310,500


Building & Grounds N/A N/A N/A TORO SAND PRO-3-WHEELER W/ATTACHMENT $18,154 $18,154


NEW EQUIPMENT TOTAL $328,654


TOTAL VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $1,288,116


Replacement Equipment


New Equipment







38


Enterprise Funds
Capital Improvement Program


Vehicles / Equipment 







39


CIP Funding Sources – Enterprise Funds


 Funding Sources 


 Total 5 Year 


CIP Plan  FY 2015 


 2016-2019 


Total  Future 


Stormwater 912,014         912,014            -                   -                       


Stormwater - General Fund Loan 2,000,000      2,000,000         -                   -                       


Water System 1,400,000      150,000            1,250,000      9,000,000         


Water System Bond Projects 5,676,000      5,676,000         -                   -                       


Total Enterprise Funds CIP 9,988,014      8,738,014         1,250,000      9,000,000         







40


Enterprise Capital Improvement Program – As Proposed


FY 2015 Budget - Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Plan


# of 


Projects Dept Project Description


 Total 5 Year 


CIP Plan  FY 2015 


 2016-2019 


Total  Future 


55 Stormwater Brittany Way 75,000           75,000           -                   -                    


56 Stormwater Lawson Lane 65,000           65,000           -                   -                    


57 Stormwater Oak Street 80,000           80,000           -                   -                    


58 Stormwater Emerald Lake Dam 1,720,000      1,720,000      -                   -                    


59 Stormwater Longview Dam 439,000         439,000         -                   -                    


60 Stormwater Longview Dam 30,000           30,000           -                   -                    


61 Stormwater Kozisek Dam 250,000         250,000         -                   -                    


62 Stormwater Morning Dove Project - Cat II Tier I 203,100         203,100         -                   -                    


63 Stormwater Stormwater Projects - Replacements/Upgrade 49,914           49,914           -                   -                    


Total - Stormwater 2,912,014      2,912,014      -                   -                    


64 Water System Horseman's Water Tank -                   -                   2,000,000      


65 Water System Porter Road Line Extension -                   -                   2,000,000      


66 Water System Porter Road Water Tank -                   -                   2,000,000      


67 Water System Highway 74 Pressure Improvement 1,250,000      1,250,000      


68 Water System Brooks Distribution System 150,000         150,000         -                   3,000,000      


Total - Water System 1,400,000      150,000         1,250,000      9,000,000      


Water System Water System Bond Projects 5,676,000      5,676,000      -                   -                    







41


FY 2015 Budget – Water System Bond Projects


Crosstown WTP
ID # Recommended Improvement Category Priority In-House


10A Filter modifications: Replace all  fi l ter underdrains Treatment Critical $850,000


10B Filter modifications: Replace all  fi l ter media Treatment Critical $200,000


10C Filter modifications: Replace all  fi l ter valves with electric actuated valves Treatment Critical $650,000


10D Filter modifications: Add blower and air scour to each of the fi lters Treatment Critical $450,000


10E


Filter modifications: Replace fi lter control  system with new PLC based system and integrate 


into SCADA Treatment Critical $250,000


12B


Chemical  Modifications: Demolish existing chlorine dioxide system and install  a new 


chlorine dioxide system in the same room. Chemical Critical $375,000


12C


Chemical  Modifications: Install  new l iquid l ime system with feeds to both raw and post and 


demolish existing l ime systems. Chemical Critical $650,000


12H


Chemical  Modifications: Install  new sodium or potassium permanganate system in 


chemical bui lding. Chemical Critical $195,000


2 Replace raw water sample pipe from raw water metering pit to operation's building Treatment High $6,000


4 Add streaming current meter to raw water splitter box. Raw Water High $24,000


6 Add pH meter to raw water meter vault Raw Water High $18,000







42


FY 2015 Budget – Water System Bond Projects


Crosstown WTP - Continued
9A Sedimentation Basin Modifications: Demolish the divider wall  (curtains) Treatment High $16,000


9B


Sedimentation Basin Modifications: Replace the Trac-Vac systems with MRI Hoseless Sludge 


Collection System Treatment High $40,000


9C Sedimentation Basin Modifications: MRI Equipment Treatment High $490,000


9D Sedimentation Basin Modifications: Adjust outlet weir heights as required Treatment High $4,000


12F Chemical Modifications: Integrate alum tank levels into SCADA Chemical High $45,000


12G Chemical Modifications: Replace alum pumps and integrate new pumps into SCADA Chemical High $10,000


13


Modify solids decant return system to return flow to opposite side or raw water reservoir 


than the local raw water pump station. Solids High $85,000


27a Add THM online Analyzers in Lab at each plant Treatment High $45,000


12A


Chemical Modifications: Install  powder activated carbon system with si lo; capable of doing 


raw water and on top of fi lters. Chemical Medium $195,000


29 New roof for the fi lter building  and HVAC modifications Other Medium $100,000


Subtotal $4,698,000







43


FY 2015 Budget – Water System Bond Projects


South Fayette County WTP
ID # Recommended Improvement Category Priority In-House


19B Chemical Modifications: Install  l iquid l ime system and demlish existing l ime system Chemical Critical $500,000


23 Flint River Pump Station: Add flow meter Raw Water High $15,000


24 Lake Horton Pump Station: Add flow meter Raw Water High $15,000


26 Lake Peachtree: Add flow meter Raw Water High $15,000


27b Add THM online Analyzers in Lab at each plant Treatment High $45,000


19C Chemical Modifications: Replace existing carbon system with new PAC system with silo Chemical High $195,000


25 Add flow meter at RW pump station Raw Water High $15,000


19D Chemical Modifications: Add ability to dose chlorine on top of the fi lters Chemical Medium $1,000


19G Chemical Modifications: Replace and relocate the existing potassium permanganate system Chemical Medium $2,000


99 Lake Horton Raw Water Pump Actuators Raw Water High $175,000


Subtotal $978,000


$5,676,000Grand Total







44


FY 2015 Budget - Water System Vehicles


**Water System vehicles included in M & O Budget


Department Description Mileage* Acq Cost Description Cost Dept Cost


Water System 1998 FORD TAURUS/VEH 126,812    $16,850 2014 F-150 Pickup $18,352


Water System 2001 FORD F-150 PICKUP TRUCK 174,023    $21,057 2014 F-150 Pickup $18,352


Water System 2002 FORD F-150 PICKUP TRUCK 175,804    $20,970 2014 F-150 Pickup $18,352


Water System 2005 FORD RANGER PICKUP TRUCK 115,879    $12,154 2014 F-150 Pickup $18,352


Water System 2005 FORD RANGER PICKUP TRUCK 223,988    $12,154 2014 F-150 Pickup $18,352


Water System 2005 FORD RANGER PICKUP TRUCK 123,984    $12,154 2014 F-150 Pickup $18,352 $110,112


WATER SYSTEM  TOTAL $110,112


Water System Vehicles**







FY 2015 Budget – Water System Equipment


45


**Water System vehicles included in M & O Budget


Department Description Mileage* Acq Cost Description Cost Dept Cost


Water System N/A N/A N/A MAIN BREAK TRAILER $11,000


Water System N/A N/A N/A PNEUMATIC  BORING TOOL COMPRESSOR $15,000


Water System N/A N/A N/A SELF-CONTAINED DIESEL MUD PUMP $30,000


Water System N/A N/A N/A ZERO TURN RADIUS MOWER $25,000


Water System N/A N/A N/A ZERO TURN RADIUS MOWER $25,000 $106,000


WATER SYSTEM  TOTAL $106,000


Water System Equipment**







General Fund
Original Adopted Budget


46


 42,000,000


 43,000,000


 44,000,000


 45,000,000


 46,000,000


 47,000,000


 48,000,000


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Recommended 2015


Revenue


Expenditures







Millage Rate Comparison


47







FY2015 Budget - Highlights
� General Fund impact from maintenance & operations is a positive $530,478.


� Budget calls for no property tax increase.


� Changes in Personnel levels protect the existing outstanding service delivery to 
our Citizens.


� Budget continues to maintain the commitment to balance current year revenues 
with current year expenses.


� General Fund Assigned Balance will fund Capital/CIP. Restricted Fund Balances 
will fund Capital/CIP for all other funds.


� Funds Healthcare projected run-outs and expected claims, and creates a 
stabilization fund for future claims. 


� Incorporates Defined Benefit Plan funding over recommended levels.


� Maintains Employee Benefits:
� Medical/Dental/Vision Health Insurance


� Define Benefit / Contribution Plan


� County-Wide departmental cooperation has yielded positive results. 


48





		Finance- Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Agenda Request File

		Finance- Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Fire and Emergency Services Chief David J. Scarbrough


Approval of staff's request to appoint Assistant Fire Chief Kevin Baggett as the representative from Peachtree City's Fire and Emergency 


Services to the West Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical Services Council for a two-year term that will begin on July 1, 2014 and will 


expire on June 30, 2016. 


This recommendation is to fill a vacancy on the West Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical Services Council.  Assistant Fire Chief 


Kevin Baggett replaced Captain John Dunlap on the Council, and this replacement was approved by the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners on February 17, 2014. 


 


Assistant Fire Chief Kevin Baggett is now serving as the EMS Director for the City of Peachtree City.  This position joins representatives 


from Fayette County Fire and Emergency Services as voting members of this council. 


 


The West Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical Services Council is tasked with the oversight of the regional EMS 911 zoning system.  


Membership to the West Georgia Regional IV Emergency Medical Services Council is based upon the Director and /or the designee who 


represents that licensed Emergency Medical Service serving that jurisdiction. 


Approval of staff's request to appoint Assistant Fire Chief Kevin Baggett as the representative from Peachtree City's Fire and Emergency 


Services to the West Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical Services Council for a two-year term that will begin on July 1, 2014 and will 


expire on June 30, 2016. 


Not Applicable.


Yes Monday, February 17, 2014


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 12, 2014 Consent



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #5












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Department Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #904 as a split bid to Martin Marietta Aggregates for the purchase of surge stone 


and rip rap types 1 & 3, to Hanson's Aggregates for the purchase of GAB, #4, #5, #57, #89 & #810 stone, and to Stephens Rock & Dirt 


for the purchase of #34, #357 and M-10 screenings, for Fiscal Year 2015, in an amount not to exceed $250,672.00. 


Annual Bid #904 seeks to identify a vendor for the purchase of various sizes of stone to be used throughout the FY2015 budget year.  


The stone is used for erosion control, construction and maintenance of parking lots, roads and drainage systems. The Purchasing 


Department received three (3) responses from this invitation to bid.  The bids were reviewed with transportation cost being a factor in the 


true cost comparison. The lowest quotes are being recommended.  The proposed contract is to be effective from July 1, 2014 through 


June 30, 2015.   


 


The not-to-exceed amounts are broken down as follows: 


 


Martin Marietta Aggregates $  35,100.00 


Hanson's Aggregates          $  210,572.00 


Stephens Rock & Dirt          $  5,000.00 


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #904 as a split bid to Martin Marietta Aggregates for the purchase of surge stone 


and rip rap types 1 & 3, to Hanson's Aggregates for the purchase of GAB, #4, #5, #57, #89 & #810 stone, and to Stephens Rock & Dirt 


for the purchase of #34, #357 and M-10 screenings, for Fiscal Year 2015, in an amount not to exceed $250,672.00, with said contract 


being effective from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.


Funding for course aggregate is approved in the Road Department's O&M budget line item 10040220- 531173.  Project specific funding 


is generally included in CIP and SPLOST projects.


Yes Thursday, December 12, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, June 12, 2014



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #6







 


 


To:  Steve Rapson 


From:  Ted L. Burgess 


Date:  May 29, 2014 


Subject: Bid #904 – Coarse Stone Aggregate 


The Road Department uses a number of sizes of coarse stone aggregate for various purposes, 
such as asphalt mixes, erosion control, and other uses.  Each year, the county enters into an 
annual price contract for purchases as needed. 
 
The Purchasing Department released Invitation to Bid #904 to obtain prices for Fiscal Year 
2015, with two options to renew at the same prices, for a total of three years.  Notices of the 
opportunity to bid were direct-mailed to 11 vendors who are located in the metro Atlanta area.  
Another 47 were contacted through the web-based Georgia Procurement Registry.  In addition, 
invitations were extended via the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government 
Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23. 
   
Three vendors submitted bids in response to this Invitation to Bid (please see the attachment). 
Because of the cost of hauling stone, typically only vendors with nearby quarries will compete 
for contracts.  Road Department employees drive county owned or leased trucks to the quarries, 
and bring loads of aggregate back to the work site.  This makes the location of the quarry 
important, in that costs in addition to the purchase price must be considered.  As specified in the 
Invitation to Bid, county transportation costs were added to submitted bid prices for comparison 
purposes, based on distances to be traveled. 
 
The Road Department recommends that contracts for the lowest bid be awarded for each size 
of aggregate.  This will result in all three bidders receiving contracts, as follows: 
 


       Vendor      Location    Award Not-to-Exceed 
 Hanson Aggregates  Tyrone   $210,572 
 Martin Marietta  Tyrone       35,100 


Stephens Rock & Dirt  College Park        5,000 
 
Based on total cost calculations provided by the Road Department, the Purchasing Department 
supports the recommendations. 
 
Attachment 







FY 2014 County Total County Total County Total
Contract Bid Trans- Per Bid Trans- Per Bid Trans- Per


Unit Price Price portation Ton Price portation Ton Price portation Ton
Rip Rap - Type 1 Ton 14.35   $18.00 $2.53 $20.53 $17.00 $2.50 $19.50 $18.90 $3.47 $22.37
Rip Rap - Type 3 Ton 13.35   16.00   2.53      18.53    15.00      2.50      17.50    14.10      3.47      17.57    
Surge Ton 12.00   15.00   2.53      17.53    13.75      2.50      16.25    14.10      3.47      17.57    
Graded Aggregate Base Ton 7.00     8.00     2.53      10.53    8.75        2.50      11.25    9.00        3.47      12.47    
#4 Stone Ton 11.50   12.50   2.53      15.03    13.75      2.50      16.25    14.10      3.47      17.57    
#5 Stone Ton 12.30   13.30   2.53      15.83    14.25      2.50      16.75    14.10      3.47      17.57    
#34 Stone Ton N/A No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 14.10      3.47      17.57    
#357 Stone Ton N/A No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 14.10      3.47      17.57    
#57 Stone Ton 12.00   13.00   2.53      15.53    14.00      2.50      16.50    14.10      3.47      17.57    
#89 Stone Ton N/A 17.00   2.53      19.53    19.75      2.50      22.25    18.00      3.47      21.47    
#810 Stone Ton 6.00     7.00     2.53      9.53      No Bid No Bid No Bid 14.10      3.47      17.57    
M-10 Screenings Ton N/A 11.50   2.53      14.03    11.00      2.50      13.50    5.35        3.47      8.82      


Note: County employees will drive county trucks to the quarries, where they will be filled with aggregate stone.
To allow for distance to each bidder's quarry, Road Department staff determined the transportation cost per ton,
and added it to the bid price, to determine the "true" cost differences between vendors.


Hanson Aggregates Martin Marietta Stephens Rock & Dirt


Fayette County, Georgia
Invitation to Bid #904


Coarse Stone Aggregate





		Road- Course Aggregate Agenda Request File

		Road- Course Aggregate Backup

		Coarse Aggregate - Purchasing Backup 1

		Coarse Aggregate - Purchasing Backup 2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Water System Lee Pope


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow the exchange of meters between Mr. Newhart's old property at 600 Janice 
Drive and the current property he owns at 115 Gingercake Drive at no cost to Mr. Newhart.


Mr. Newhart lived at 600 Janice Drive.  Due to the West Fayetteville bypass being built, he sold his property to the county for the road to 
be built.   
 
Mr. Newhart now lives at 115 Gingercake Drive and has requested a meter be placed at his current location at no charge, since he paid 
for a meter as part of the line extension on Janice Drive.   
 
The meter that was installed at 600 Janice Drive was taken out of the ground and put back in the Water System inventory due to the road 
being built on that property. 
 
The cost of a meter is $900.00.  The Water Committee is recommending an exchange of the meter that was installed at Janice Drive.  A 
new meter will be installed at 115 Gingercake Drive upon Board approval.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow the exchange of meters between Mr. Newhart's old property at 600 Janice 
Drive and the current property he owns at 115 Gingercake Drive at no cost to Mr. Newhart.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 12, 2014



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #7












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Approval of Chairman Steve Brown's recommendation to amend Ordinance 2014-02 by revising White Lining standards to those reflected 


in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the "Tolerance Zone" from 24 inches to 18 inches and other minor modifications.


White Lining is a practice that has been widely used in the United States where the National Transportation Board concluded that pre-


marking is a practice that helps prevent excavation damage.  The procedure involves an excavator using white paint to indicate the route 


or area that is going to be excavated, such that the locator knows exactly how much marking is required and where.  White lining reduces 


confusion about what utilities need to be marked or not marked.  On January 23, 2014, the Board of Commissioners adopted Ordinance 


2014-02, amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 19, by adding White Lining.  Ordinance 2014-02 (Section A, pgs 


2-17) established a White Lining "Tolerance Zone" of 24 inches. 


 


Recently, the Georgia General Assembly passed Senate Bill 117 (Section B, pgs 18-36) related to blasting or excavating near utility 


facilities and will become effective throughout the state on July 1, 2014.  Senate Bill 117 redefined the "Tolerance Zone" related to White 


Lining from 24 inches to 18 inches.   


 


This request is to amend Ordinance 2014-02 (Section C, pgs 37-44) reducing the County's "Tolerance Zone" for White Lining from 24 


inches to 18 inches, thereby allowing Fayette County to hold to the same standards established by the State of Georgia.


Approval of Chairman Steve Brown's recommendation to amend Ordinance 2014-02 by revising White Lining standards to those reflected 


in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the "Tolerance Zone" from 24 inches to 18 inches and other minor modifications.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 12, 2014



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #8







COUNTY OF FAYETTE


STATE OF GEORGIA


ORDINANCE


NO. 2014-02


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO PRO VIDE FOR UNDERGROUN D MARKING


STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE;


AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE


COUNTY, AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY


THERE OF, THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY BE


AMENDED BY PROVIDING FOR UNDERGROUND MARKING STANDARDS AS


FOLLOWS:


Section 1.


Section 2.


Sec. 19-71.


By deleting Article IV of Chapter 19 in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof


a new Article IV in Chapter 19 to read as follows:


ARTICLE IV.


FAYETTE CO UNTY UNDERGROUND MARKING STANDARDS


By adding a section to Article IV pertaining to definitions to be numbered and to


read as follows:


Definitions


1



FJones

Typewritten Text

Section A







The following words are to be understood consistent with the definit ions contained herein


as applicable to this Article.


(a) "Emergency" means a sudden or unforeseen occurrence involving a clear and


imminent danger to life, health, or property; the interruption of utility servic es; or repairs to


transportation facilities that require immediate action.


(b) "Extraordinary circumstances" means circumstances other than normal operating


conditions which exist and make it impractical or impossible for a facility owner or operator to


comply with the provisions of this Article. Such extraordinary circumstances may include, but


shall not be limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, ice and snow, and acts of God.


Section 3. By adding a sect ion to Article IV pertaining to White Lining to be numbered and


to read as follows:


Sec. 19-72. White Lining


(a) Background . White lining is a practice that has been widely used in the United


States where the Nationa l Transportation Board concluded that pre-marking is a practice that


helps prevent excavation damage. The procedure simply involves an excavato r using white paint
"


to indicate the route or area that is going to be excavated, such that the locator then knows


exactly how much marking is required and where. White lining reduces confusion about what


utilities need to be marked or not marked.


(b) Purpose. The purpose of white lining is to allow everyone involved with the


dig site to know the exact location of the proposed excava tion. White lining the excavation site


is an excellent way to assist the utilities or utility locators in marking lines in the work area right


2







the first time and in less time. This technique eliminates speculation by the locator about where


the excavation will take place and will often enable the utility or its agent to locate faster and


more accurately. In short, pre-marking the area and the extent of the intended excavation can


reduce delays and the time it takes to perform the locate.


(c) Examples; timing. Examples of areas to be white lined are smaller (involving


only a portion of a particular address) or linear excavations such as telecommunication drops and


lines, service lines (such as for water, gas, electricity and sewer), utility pits, cuts and repairs,


curb repairs, bore holes, directional boring pathways, pole and signage placements, etc. Such


examples are merely explanatory of the type of excavation where white lining is appropriate and


are not meant to be exclusive. White lining shall be comp leted prior to contacting GA811 to


obtain a locate request ticket number. Electronic/virtual white lining is not an acceptable or


recognized method.


(d) Exceptions to White Lining. Exceptions are allowed as follows:


(I ) Unless one or more utility facilities are damaged 5 times or more


collectively by a contractor making the locate request within a 90-day contract period,


white lining will not be required for any large project so desig nated in accordance with


GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13 (a copy of GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13 currently in effect is attached


as Exhibit "An and by this reference is incorporated herein). A large project ticket holder


whose past prohibits it from being exempt. as stated above, will be subject to no more


than a two day shutdown period and shall be required to white line the remainder of the


project to meet the Large Project Marking Facility Locating Agreement Schedule that the


ticket holder and utility originally agreed upon;


3







(2) Homeowners/occupants involved in excavation or land disturbance that is


confined to a single address or parcel. Homeowners/occupants shall not submit locate


requests for excavation or land disturbance that will be performed by a business, a


contractor, or a utility. Businesses, contractors, and utilities are not exempt from white


lining;


(3) "Emergencies" and "extraordinary circumstances" as such terms are


defined herein, are statutory exceptions to the requirement for obtaining a locate ticket


prior to commencing mechanized excavation and, hence, also exceptions to the


requirement for white lining under this section. However, if a particular emergency


notification is later determined not to have been an emergency or an extraordinary


circumstance, then the excavator's failure to procure a locate ticket before excavating


will be treated as a violation of this section. Also, pre-excavation emergency locate ticket


requests (that is, a request for a locate ticket on an expedited basis sooner than the


prescribed time limit) will not be an exception to white lining as required in this section;


(4) Residential telecommunication service drop lines that can be delineated by


the route of the existing line on the ground for single residential address/parcel requests


only; and


(5) Termite baiting systems.


(e) White Lining Symbols as Directions to Locator. White lining proposed dig


sites that will follow a single path or trench shall be marked using white lines and/or arrows and


shall be located for twenty (20) feet on either side of the white line and for twenty (20) feet


outward beyond the designated "START" and "END" of such linear white line. Therefore, it is


important to identify the starting and ending points.


4







START <:~::J c ) ) ) END


(I) Identification of White Lining Excavator. In order to enable the locating utility


or its locators to quickly identify the requested locate at the job site and expedite the locating


process, such excavator when white lining shall identify himself or itself by labeling the white


line area with the excavator's name or the applicable locate ticket number or both.


Section 4. By adding a section to Article IV pertaining to marking of facilities by or for


utilities to be numbered and to read as follows:


Sec. 19-73. Facility Marking by or for Utiliti es


(a) Utility Markings. Facility owners or their locate contractors shall indicate


utility facilities by placing their UPC alpha code, along with the type material (if known) that the


facility consis ts of, at the beginning and end of locates. Also, arrows should be placed at the


ends of markings to indicate that the underground facility continues. In accomplishing the locate


task, the line locator shall use industry-approved and generally accepted methods of locating.


The tolerance zone shall be 24" measured horizontally from the outer edge of either side of such


marked utility facilities. ' .,


(I) To avoid confusion on long runs, the maries shall be frequent enough to


identify the owner.


(2) The marks shall indicate the approximate center-line of the underground


lines. For example, the middle of the cable, line or pipe shall be at the center of the


dashed marks.


5



FJones

Highlight







(3) Location marks shall be 4 to 12 inches in length and at intervals of 5 to 10


feet.


5 ft. to 10 ft. int ervals


1J
4 inches to 12 inches


(4) The line locator (person marking the lines) shall extend marks outside the


proposed work area by 20 to 30 feet if those facilities extend outside the proposed


excavation area.


oc=J c=J c=J 0
¢=:i FA YIII ~ 0 c:::;;;) c:5::) 0


oc=J c=J c=J0
FA V01 Q


(5) In areas such as flower beds, rock gardens, etc., flags or stakes may be an


alternative to paint. The decision to use flags, paint, or stakes shall be based on the


terrain and job conditions. For instance, flags or stakes in wet areas, offsets in dirt
~..


construction zones that have a high volume of traffic crossing their line loca tion marks.


6







(6) Dead ends, stub-outs, termination points, etc., shall be marked as follows:


FA VII I


(7) Lines that have connections (e.g., T' s or Y' s) or changes in directions


shall be clearly indicated. Marks indicating lines or connections shall clearly show the


intersection and path of the line or connection. Marks that show changes in direction


shall be placed closer together for more clarity and accuracy.


FA YIl I


<G . .• 1 FAYIl I


FA VII I


I F \ vm I


(8) Manholes and valves shall be identified by using a circle and letters if they


are not visible (dir t covering valve boxes or pavement covering manhole cover).


®®
(9) Facilities that cross but do not intersect shall be marked as described to


indicate such installation manner.


FAVIII


7







~
< >FAYOI FAYOI


~
FAYOI


~
(10) Unlocateable sewer laterals shall be marked by placing a green triangle on


the sewer main and, if the location of the tap for such unlocateable sewer lateral is


known, by placing a green "T" or "Y" or other appropri ate symbol at the tap pointing


generally toward the address served by such unlocateable sewer lateral.


<.
(I I)


PCH07


When facilities share the same trench, they shall be heavily identified and


separated enough so that they can be readily identified. This would apply to lines that


share the same color code. For example, cable television and telephone lines:-.


< \ I c\ I >
< >• " \ .


< C A. PO W ER I- :>


8







(12) If the facility to be marked has a diameter greater than 12" , the size of the


facili ty shall be indicated if known. If the size is not known, then the mark shall indicate


greater than 12 inches.


(13) Duct structures shall be marked by using a dot with parall el boundary on


each side of the dot.


It·'


(14) In areas where there is a strong likelihood that any or all marker types


showing line location would be destroyed, offsets shall be placed on a perm anent surface.


However, offsets should be used only in conj unction with marks placed above a facility.


Offset spacing should be every third or fourth mark. For example, the following mark


would indicate the line is 16 feet from the end of the arrow.


<-----'
(15) In areas where cables are spliced, the faci lities should be located


individual ly as far as possible on both sides of the splice. When the signal is distorted


due to the near proximity to the splice a circle with "SP" should indicate the area of


distortion or "splice pit" .


9







(


Section 5.


Section 6.


Section 7.


This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the


Board of Commissioners of Fayette County.


All other ordinances or parts of ordinances which are in conflict with this


ordinance are hereby repealed.


In the event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall


in no manne r affect other sections, subsect ions, sentences, clauses or phrases of


this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section,


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adj udged invalid or


unconstitutional were not a part thereof. The Board of Commissioners hereby


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this ordinance if it had


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or


unconstitutional.


10







SO ENACTED this J j ':9 day Of --,eJ;,a~""".lL.'7'=1- ' 2014.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF FAYETTE COUNTY


STEVE BROWN, Chairman
By:,_--,----_~~..L- _


Approved as to form:


County Atto rney r


11







515-9-4-.13 Procedures for Large Projects.
(l) Purpose and Scope:


(a) The purpose of this rule is to set forth procedures that provide for the waive r in
writing, of the 48 hour not ice and the 2 1 calendar day expiratio n for any projec ts that
cannot be located pursuan t to O.e.G.A. § 25-9-7. This Rule is necessary in order to
allow proper plann ing and sc heduling of the locating of utilit y fac ilit ies within the
geograph ical area of a designated "Large Project." Because most large projects require
multiple re- stakes , it has proven difficult and cumberso me for faci lity owner/opera tors to
respond to locate requests w ithin the 48 hour notice t ime frame normally requ ired by the
Georgia Utility Facility Protect ion Ac t ("GUFPA"). Excavators on such large projects
last ing for months an d even years ha ve sim ilarly found it cumberso me and op pressive to
have a locate ticket ex pire afte r 21 ca lendar days a nd have to reapply for renewal or
refreshing of such locate ticket repe ated ly over the life of a large project.


(b) This Rule allows for parameters to be set for all parties involved in a large project so
that such part ies ma y enjoy more flex ibility and less rig idity in re porti ng wit hout any loss
or sacrifice in the record-keeping, loca ting of utility fac ilities, prevent ion of damage to
such facil ities, and public safety protections which GUFPA was designed and intende d to
imple ment.


(c) Unless hereinafter spec if ica lly excepted, all other provisions of O.C.G.A . § 25-9- 1 et
seq., shall apply to large projects .


(2) Procedu res:


(a) Upon an excavator' s contacting the Ut ilities Protection Center (UPC) to procure a
locate ticket and upon the UPC's concluding that the proposed excavat ion qualif ies as a
large project t icket under Commiss ion Ut ility Rule 5 15- 9-4-.02(D (t hro ugh the process of
handling such request(s) for one or more locates), the UPC shall prov ide instructions for
excava tor(s) that the involved excavation project shall be treated as a large project under
Commission rules and that the exca vator has a duty to s ubmit to th e UPC a Large Projec t
Planning Meeting Not ificat ion.


(b) Upon the UPCs concluding that a part icular locate request or requests qua lify-,as a
Large Project as defined by Co mm iss ion Rule 5 15-9-4-. 020) . a mandatory Large Project
Plann ing Meeting Notificat ion sha ll be issued by the excavator, no less than 10 busin ess
days pr ior to beginning exc avat ion or blast ing act ivit ies , to the UPC, for immediate
forward ing to all facility owner/operators having fac ilities in the area . Such notification
sha ll inc lude the exca vator 's suggested da te, t ime , location , and contact perso n for the
proposed meeting. The date of the mandatory meet ing s hall be a mi nimum of 48 hours
after the notificat ion is submitted to the UPC, starting at 7:00 a.m . the next bus iness day
and excluding non-b usiness days. This mandatory large project mee t ing notification
requirement sha ll not app ly to re -ac tivated large projects that have cont inued in full force
and effect, and w ithout deactivation . Notw ithstanding the above, nothing in this ru le
shall prevent the excavator and the util ity facility ow ner/operato rs from choos ing to meet
otherwise.


EXHIBIT "A"







(c) After receiving the Large Project request , the UPC shall notify all affect ed facility
owners or operators of the mandatory Large Project Planning Meet ing. The mandatory
Large Project Planning Meeting sha ll be scheduled no less than 5 business days prior to
beginning excavation or blasting activit ies. Each fac ility owner/operator sha ll prov ide an
automated response to the UPC indicating agreement to the date and t ime of the
mandatory Large Project Planning Meeting within 2 bus iness days of such notice,
through the use of the Posit ive Response Informat ion System (PRIS).


(d) All provisions of this "Large Project" rule sha ll apply to the utili ty facility
owner/operator and all locates shall be conducted pursuant to these rules and the
negotiated marking agree ment aris ing here from.


(e) No later than two business days follow ing the mandatory Large Project Planning
Meeting, whichever comes first, the UPC shall upda te the sta tus of the t icke t from a
"Large Project Planning Meeting Not ification" to a "Large Project Excavation
Notification ." At that point , the "Large Project Excavat ion Notification" will become an
active t icket and will be transmitted by the UPC to all affected utility facility
owner/operators.


(I) During the life of the large project ticket, a ll requests for locates and notices of
marking performed that deviate from the marking agreement sha ll be documented
through the UPC. Once all excavat ion activities have been completed by a particular
excavator, such excavator will notify the UPC to close or de-act ivate the notification.


(g) Unless renewed beforehand by the excavator, all Large Project Excavation
Notifications w ill be automatica lly c losed/de-ac tivated once ninety (90) days have
elapsed from the date of activation. The excavator may re-new the not ification as
necessary so long as excavation on the project cont inues. The notifica tion w ill be
automatica lly c losed/deac t ivated ninety (90) days following the most recent renewal.


(3) The excavator and facility owner(s)/operator(s) or LOCATOR(S)/UTILITY(S) shall
enter into a negotiated written agree ment setting out the schedule for marking the project
(see attached example form) at the Large Project p lanning meeting. Steps shall be taken
to work together, includ ing the Large Project Planning Meet ing, so that a negotiated
marking plan may be agreed upon a llowing the faci lity ow ner(s)/operator(s) to locate the
utility fac ilities at a t ime reasonably in advance of the actua l start of excavation or
blasting for each phase of the work. A working relat ionship sha ll be established between
the excavator and the facility owner/operator representative s to reduce confusion at the
work site . Emergency phone numbers and contact people sha ll be identified for
notification of problems, de lays or changes in the marking plan. In addition to the Large
Project Planning Meet ing, the excavator shall conduct periodic ut ility coordination
meetings to enhance the communicat ion and progress of the planned schedule and
markings. IF FOR ANY REASON A FACILITY OWNER/OPERATOR CANNOT
ATTEND SUCH MEETING, THE FACILITY OWN ER/OPERATOR'S
REPRESENTATIVE MAY CONTACT THE EXCAVATOR AND MAKE OTHER
ARRANG EMENTS IF THE EXCAVATOR IS AGREEABLE, OR HAVE THE LINES
MARKED WITHIN THE 48 HOURS REQUIRED BY LAW (O.C.G.A. § 25-9-1 ET
SEQ.).


EVTxI B Tm "f.'\".LL .L.l -'-L -...







(4) The terms and conditions of such negotiated mark ing agreement must be in writing,
and executed by the excavator and the facilit y owner/operator or locate representative
(i.e. contrac t LOCATORIUTILITY for t he facili ty owner/operator) before excavat ion
commences. If the LOCATORIUTILITY is going to execute the negot iated marking
agreement on beha If of the fac i1ity owner/operator, the fac i1ity owner/operator sha II ha ve
on file with the UPC, written documentation of such grant of authority from the facility
owner/operator to the LOCATORIUTILITY. Such negot iated marking agreement and
comp liance with the terms thereof, sha ll const itute an exemptio n from the requirements
of subsect ions O.C.G.A . §§ 25-9-7(a)( I), (b)(I), (c), (e) and (k)(I) and subsections
O.C.G.A. §§ 25-9-6(c), (e) and (h) . The excavator and facili ty owner/operator shall each
retain a copy of the executed marking agreement.


(5) If the facilit y owner/opera tor fa ils to respond to the excavator's terms of the
negotiated markin g agreement or the fac ility owner/o perator notifies the exca vator that
the facilities cannot be marked w ithin the time frame delineated with in the negotiated
marking agreement and a mutua lIy agreeable date for mark ing cannot be reached, the
excavator may attempt to locate the facilities in accordance with subsection O.e.G.A. §
25-9-7(1) , then proceed with excavat ion or blasting provided reasonable care is exercised.
At the opti on of the excavator and as an alternative to the excavator ' s attempt ing to locate
the fac ilities at issue, such facilit ies sha ll revert back to the locate time -frame mandated
by O.C.G.A. § 25-9-7.


(6) Failure of any party to abide by the terms of the negotiated marking agreement shall
be a vio lat ion of the Comm ission 's Large Project Rule delineated herein. Any such
violation shall be gro unds for and may result in sanctions includ ing but not limited to
civil and/or criminal penalt ies be ing imposed upon the v io lat ing party in accordance with
Georg ia La w. Moreover, where an excavator fa ils to abide by the terms of the neg otiated
marking agreement and causes damage to a utility fac i1ity as a result, the excavator may
be subject to penalties delineated in O.e.G.A. § 25-9-1 3(7).


(7) Good Fa ith Ne gotiation Required. The fail ure of any party to negot iate in goo d faith
shall constitute a violation of the Comm issi on's Large Project Rules and may res ult in the
imposition of penalt ies under O.C.G.A. §§ 25-9-13 and/o r 46 -2-9 1 as well as any other
penalties that may be imposed pursuant to Georgia Law or the Commission's Rules. The
failure of any party to negotiate in good faith sha ll also result in all locates being
performed in accordance with the procedures and time lines se t forth in O.C.G.A. § 2:5'9
I et. seq. w ith the cost for all suc h locates to be paid for by the party having ne got iated in
bad faith .


(8) Any person holding an active large project ticket may a llow any dually author ized
subcontractors to work under such large project ticket provided the provisions of
O.C.G.A. § 25-9-6(g) a re met. For purposes of th is rule, any contractual agreeme nt
entered into pursuant to O.e.G.A. § 25-9-6(g) sha II be in writing.


(9) Nothing in this Ru le exempts any facility owner/operator, excavator ,
LOCATOR/UTILITY or any other person from the duty he or she would otherwise have
under GUFPA or the Comm ission ' s Utility Rules to report damage s to buried utility
facilit ies .


EXHIBIT "A"







SAMPLE SAMPLE


Large Project - Sample Utility Facility Locating Agreement


THIS AGREEMENT, made this -;--;-----;:-_ _ ;:---:,.--,,--- (month/date/ycar), by
and between , hereinafter called the EXCAVATOR, and
________, hereinafter called the LOCATORlUTILlTY: Due to the
construction of this large project , it will become necessary to make certain arrangements
for the locating of the utility facilit ies in accordance with the Georgia Public Service
Commission's Rule 515-9-4.


This Agreement is for the sole purpose of each party working together to minimize or
eliminate any damages to utility facilities as well as allow the EXCAVATOR to pursue
the work more expeditiously.


In consideration of the premises and the mutua I covenants of the parties hereinafter set
forth, it is agreed:


I. The LOCATOR/UTILITY sha ll provide the EXCAVATOR with correct contact
information, inc luding but not limited to, business address, business phone numbers,
business facsimile numbers and any ava ilable pager or cellu lar numbers for all availab le
locate technicians/representatives and the ir supervisors for this project at the time of
executing this Agreement.


2. Attached and made part of th is agreement is the negotiated marking plan, which is
prepared by the EXCAVATOR. Any modifications or changes to the negotiated marking
plan sha ll be reviewed and agreed to by both parties.


3. It is specifically understood that the EXCAVATOR will notify the
LOCATORIUTILITY by telephone, electronic mail or other means as provided by the
LOCATOR/UTILITY prior to commencing any excavation activities to ensure the
specific work sites have been marked.


4. If EXCAVATOR needs to move to a project work s ite involving excavation that has
not been marked by the LOCATOR/UTILITY or the LOCATORIUTILITY has not
confirme d the accuracy of the existing marks at such site, the EXCAVATOR shall make
contact with the LOCATORlUTILlTY and a llow time to respond. '.,


5. The LOCATORIUTILITY shall be available within 24 hours and sha ll respond within
such time frame in order for the work site to be marked or confirm the accuracy of the
existing marks.


6. If for any reason, the negotiated marking agreement is terminated, the Large Project
Procedures under the Georgia Public Service Commiss ion's Rule 5 15-9-4 are hereby
waived and the provisions of the Official Code of Georgia, Annotated Section 25-9-1 et.
seq, shall continue in full force and effect.


LOCATOR/UTILITY Name (print):'--- _


LOCATORIUTILITY Signature :, _







EXCAVATOR Name (print) :. _


EXCAVATOR Signature :. _


Date : _


(insert date on page one of the agreement)


SAMPLE SAMPLE


Authority O.C.G.A. Sees. 25-9-3, 25-9-6, 25-9-7, 25-9-13. History. Orig inal Rule entitled "Procedures for
Large Projects" adopted . F. May 19, 2006; eff. June 8, 2006. Amended: F. Dec. 21, 2006; eff. Jan. 10,
2007. Re peale d: New Rule of same t itle adopted . F. Feb. 10, 2009; eff. Mar. 2, 2009.


'R~,;~;.TTET/r "A"
_ J.1 :..... .J.. J.....:-..l. ..L







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 1 -


Senate Bill 117


By: Senators Jeffares of the 17th, Tippins of the 37th, Murphy of the 27th, Mullis of the


53rd, Gooch of the 51st and others 


AS PASSED 


A BILL TO BE ENTITLED


AN ACT


To amend Chapter 9 of Title 25 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to1


blasting or excavating near utility facilities, so as to revise and add definitions; to provide for2


responses by facility owners and operators regarding design locate requests; to clarify the3


effect of a design locate request; to require that the time frame for the requested excavation4


be defined in a locate request; to provide that white lining shall not obstruct certain signage5


and markings; to limit the expansion of tracts for blasting or excavation; to revise the time6


frame for acting on locate requests; to provide for strict liability for certain costs by facility7


owners and operators under certain circumstances; to provide for the promulgation of certain8


rules by the Public Service Commission; to provide for the use of reasonable care by9


excavators to protect utilities in tolerance zones; to provide for direction with regard to10


certain enforcement actions; to change the composition of the advisory committee and11


provide for an attendance policy at its meetings; to provide for related matters; to repeal12


conflicting laws; and for other purposes.13


BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF GEORGIA:14


SECTION 1.15


Chapter 9 of Title 25 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to blasting or16


excavating near utility facilities, is amended by revising Code Section 25-9-3, relating to17


definitions, as follows:18


"25-9-3.19


As used in this chapter, the term:20


(1)  'Abandoned utility facility' means a utility facility taken out of service by a facility21


owner or operator on or after January 1, 2001.22


(2)  'Blasting' means any operation by which the level or grade of land is changed or by23


which earth, rock, buildings, structures, or other masses or materials are rended, torn,24


demolished, moved, or removed by the detonation of dynamite or any other explosive25


agent.26



FJones

Typewritten Text



FJones

Typewritten Text



FJones

Typewritten Text

Section B







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 2 -


(3)  'Business days' means Monday through Friday, excluding the following holidays:27


New Year's Day, Birthday of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Memorial Day, Independence28


Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and the following Friday, Christmas Eve, and29


Christmas Day.  Any such holiday that falls on a Saturday shall be observed on the30


preceding Friday.  Any such holiday that falls on a Sunday shall be observed on the31


following Monday.32


(4)  'Business hours' means the time from 7:00 A.M. to 4:30 P.M. local time on business33


days.34


(5)  'Commission' means the Public Service Commission.35


(6)  'Corporation' means any corporation; municipal corporation; county; authority;36


joint-stock company; partnership; association; business trust; cooperative; organized37


group of persons, whether incorporated or not; or receiver or receivers or trustee or38


trustees of any of the foregoing.39


(7)  'Damage' means any impact or exposure that results in the need to repair a utility40


facility or sewer lateral due to the weakening or the partial or complete destruction of the41


facility or sewer lateral including, but not limited to, the protective coating, lateral42


support, cathodic protection, or the housing for the line, device, sewer lateral, or facility.43


(8)  'Design locate request' means a communication to the utilities protection center in44


which a request for locating existing utility facilities for bidding, predesign, or advance45


planning purposes is made.  A design locate request may shall not be used for excavation46


purposes.47


(9)  'Designate' means to stake or mark on the surface of the tract or parcel of land the48


location of a utility facility or sewer lateral.49


(10)  'Emergency' means a sudden or unforeseen occurrence involving a clear and50


imminent danger to life, health, or property; the interruption of utility services; or repairs51


to transportation facilities that require immediate action.52


(11)  'Emergency notice' means a communication to the utilities protection center to alert53


the involved facility owners or operators of the need to excavate due to an emergency that54


requires immediate excavation.55


(12)  'Excavating' means any operation by which the level or grade of land is changed or56


using mechanized equipment or explosives to move earth, rock, or other material below57


existing grade.  This is moved and includes, without limitation, grading, trenching,58


digging, ditching, augering, scraping, directional boring, and pile driving. Such term,59


however, does not include routine road surface scraping maintenance includes but is not60


limited to augering, blasting, boring, digging, ditching, dredging, drilling, driving-in,61


grading, plowing-in, ripping, scraping, trenching, and tunneling.  'Excavating' shall not62


include pavement milling or pavement repair that does not exceed the depth of the63







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 3 -


existing pavement or 12 inches, whichever is less.  The term shall not include other64


routine roadway road or railroad maintenance activities carried out by road maintenance65


or railroad employees or contractors, provided that such activities occur entirely within66


the right of way of a public road, street, railroad, or highway of the state; are carried out67


with reasonable care so as to protect any utility facilities and sewer laterals placed in the68


right of way by permit; are carried out within the limits of any original excavation on the69


traveled way, shoulders, or drainage ditches of a public road, street, railroad, or highway,70


and do not exceed 18 inches in depth below the grade existing prior to such activities;71


and, if involving the replacement of existing structures guard rails and sign posts, replace72


such structures guard rails and sign posts in their previous locations and at their previous73


depth.  'Excavating' shall not include normal farming activities.74


(13)  'Excavator' means any person engaged in excavating or blasting as defined in this75


Code section.76


(14)  'Extraordinary circumstances' means circumstances other than normal operating77


conditions which exist and make it impractical or impossible for a facility owner or78


operator to comply with the provisions of this chapter.  Such extraordinary circumstances79


may include, but shall not be limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, ice and snow, and80


acts of God.81


(15)  'Facility owner or operator' means any person or entity with the sole exception of82


a homeowner who owns, operates, or controls the operation of a utility facility.83


(16)  'Farming activities' means the tilling of the fields related to agricultural activities but84


does not include other types of mechanized excavating on a farm.85


(17)  'Horizontal directional drilling' or 'HDD' means a type of trenchless excavation that86


uses guidable boring equipment to excavate in an essentially horizontal plane without87


disturbing or with minimal disturbance to the ground surface.88


(17)(18)  'Large project' means an excavation that involves more work to locate utility89


facilities than can reasonably be completed within the requirements of subsection (a) of90


Code Section 25-9-7.91


(18)(19)  'Local governing authority' means a county, municipality, or local authority92


created by or pursuant to general, local, or special Act of the General Assembly, or by the93


Constitution of the State of Georgia.  The term also includes any local authority that is94


created or activated by an appropriate ordinance or resolution of the governing body of95


a county or municipality individually or jointly with other political subdivisions of this96


state.97


(19)(20)  'Locate request' means a communication between an excavator and the utilities98


protection center in which a request for locating designating utility facilities, sewer99


laterals, or both is processed.100







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 4 -


(20)(21)  'Locator' means a person who is acting on behalf of facility owners and101


operators in designating the location of the utility facilities and sewer laterals of such102


owners and operators.103


(21)(22)  'Mechanized excavating equipment' means all equipment which is powered by104


any motor, engine, or hydraulic or pneumatic device and which is used for excavating.105


(23)  'Milling' means the process of grinding asphaltic concrete.106


(22)(24) 'Minimally intrusive excavation methods' means methods of excavation that107


minimize the potential for damage to utility facilities and sewer laterals.  Examples108


include, but are not limited to, air entrainment/vacuum extraction systems and water109


jet/vacuum excavation systems operated by qualified personnel and careful hand tool110


usage and other methods as determined by the Public Service Commission.  The term111


does not include the use of trenchless excavation.112


(23)(25)  'Permanent marker' means a visible indication of the approximate location of113


a utility facility or sewer lateral that can reasonably be expected to remain in position for114


the life of the facility.  The term includes, but is not limited to, sewer cleanouts; water115


meter boxes; and etching, cutting, or attaching medallions or other industry accepted116


surface markers to curbing, pavement, or other similar visible fixed surfaces.  All117


permanent markers other than sewer cleanouts, water meter boxes, or any other visible118


component of a utility facility that establish the exact location of the facility must be119


placed accurately in accordance with Code Section 25-9-9 and be located within the120


public right of way.  Sewer cleanouts, water meter boxes, or any other visible component121


of a utility facility that establishes the exact location of the facility must be located within122


ten feet of the public right of way to be considered a permanent marker.123


(24(26)  'Person' means an individual, firm, joint venture, partnership, association, local124


governing authority, state, or other governmental unit, authority, department, agency, or125


a corporation and shall include any trustee, receiver, assignee, employee, agent, or126


personal representative thereof.127


(25)(27)  'Positive response information system' or 'PRIS' means the automated128


information system operated and maintained by the utilities protection center at its129


location that allows excavators, locators, facility owners or operators, and other affected130


parties to determine the status of a locate request or design locate request.131


(28)  'Routine road maintenance' means work that is planned and performed on a routine132


basis to maintain and preserve the condition of the public road system and includes133


routine road surface scraping, mowing grass, animal removal, cleaning of inlets and134


culverts, trash removal, striping and striping removal, and cutting of trees; however,135


stump removal shall be considered excavation.136







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 5 -


(26)(29)  'Service area' means a contiguous area or territory which encompasses the137


distribution system or network of utility facilities by means of which a facility owner or138


operator provides utility service.139


(27)(30)  'Sewer lateral' means an individual customer service line which transports waste140


water from one or more building units to a utility owned sewer facility.141


(28)(31) 'Sewer system owner or operator' means the owner or operator of a sewer142


system.  Sewer systems shall be considered to extend to the connection to the customer's143


facilities.144


(29)(32)  'Traffic control devices' means all roadway or railroad signs, sign structures, or145


signals and all associated infrastructure on which the public relies for informational,146


regulatory, or warning messages concerning the public or railroad rights of way.147


(30)(33)  'Traffic management system' means a network of traffic control devices,148


monitoring sensors, and personnel, with all associated communications and power149


services, including all system control and management centers.150


(31)(34)  'Tolerance zone' means the width of the utility facility or sewer lateral plus 24151


18 inches on either side of the outside edge of the utility facility or sewer lateral on a152


horizontal plane.153


(32)(35)  'Trenchless excavation' means a method of excavation that uses boring154


equipment to excavate with minimal or no disturbance to the ground surface and includes155


horizontal directional drilling.156


(33)(36)  'Unlocatable facility' means an underground facility that cannot be marked with157


reasonable accuracy using generally accepted techniques or equipment commonly used158


to designate utility facilities and sewer laterals.  This term includes, but is not limited to,159


nonconductive utility facilities and sewer laterals and nonmetallic underground facilities160


that have no trace wires or records that indicate a specific location.161


(34)(37) 'Utilities protection center' or 'UPC' means the corporation or other organization162


formed by facility owners or operators to provide a joint notification service for the163


purpose of receiving advance notification from persons planning to blast or excavate and164


distributing such notifications to its affected facility owner or operator members.165


(35)(38)  'Utility facility' means an underground or submerged conductor, pipe, or166


structure used or installed for use in providing electric or communications service or in167


carrying, providing, or gathering gas, oil or oil products, sewage, waste water, storm168


drainage, or water or other liquids.  All utility facilities shall be considered to extend up169


to the connection to the customer's facilities.  The term does not include traffic control170


devices, traffic management systems, or sewer laterals.171



mbergen

Highlight







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 6 -


(39)  'White lining' means marking the route of the excavation either electronically or172


with white paint, flags, stakes, or a combination of such methods to outline the dig site173


prior to notifying the UPC and before the locator arrives on the job."174


SECTION 2.175


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-4, relating to design locate176


request and response, as follows:177


"25-9-4.178


(a)  Any person may submit a design locate request to the UPC. Such design locate request179


shall:180


(1)  Describe the tract or parcel of land for which the design locate request has been181


submitted with sufficient particularity, as defined by policies developed and promulgated182


by the UPC, to enable the facility owner or operator to ascertain the precise tract or parcel183


of land involved; and184


(2)  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who has submitted the185


design locate request, as well as the name, address, and telephone number of any other186


person authorized to review any records subject to inspection as provided in paragraph187


(3) of subsection (b) of this Code section.188


(b)  Within ten working days after a design locate request has been submitted to the UPC189


for a proposed project, the facility owner or operator shall respond by one of the following190


methods the method requested by the person calling in the design locate request:191


(1)  Designate or cause to be designated by a locator in accordance with Code Section192


Sections 25-9-7 and 25-9-9 the location of all utility facilities and sewer laterals within193


the area of the proposed excavation;194


(2)  Provide to the person submitting the design locate request the best available195


description of all utility facilities and sewer laterals in the area of proposed excavation,196


which might include drawings of utility facilities and sewer laterals already built in the197


area, or other facility records that are maintained by the facility owner or operator; or198


(3)  Allow the person submitting the design locate request or any other authorized person199


to inspect or copy the drawings or other records for all utility facilities and sewer laterals200


within the proposed area of excavation.201


(c)  Upon responding using any of the methods provided in subsection (b) of this Code202


section, the facility owner or operator shall provide the response to the UPC in accordance203


with UPC procedures.204


(d)  A design locate request shall not be used for excavation purposes."205







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 7 -


SECTION 3.206


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-6, relating to prerequisites207


to blasting or excavating and marking of sites, as follows:208


"25-9-6.209


(a)  No person shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with210


mechanized excavating equipment on any tract or parcel of land in any county in this state211


unless and until the person planning the blasting or excavating has given 48 hours' notice212


by submitting a locate request to the UPC, beginning the next business day after such213


notice is provided, excluding hours during days other than business days. Any person214


performing excavation is responsible for being aware of all information timely entered into215


the PRIS prior to the commencement of excavation. If, prior to the expiration of the 48216


hour waiting period, all identified facility owners or operators have responded to the locate217


request, and if all have indicated that their facilities are either not in conflict or have been218


marked, then the person planning to perform excavation or blasting shall be authorized to219


commence work, subject to the other requirements of this Code section, without waiting220


the full 48 hours. The 48 hours' notice shall not be required for excavating where minimally221


intrusive excavation methods are used exclusively. Any locate request received by the UPC222


after business hours shall be deemed to have been received by the UPC the next business223


day. Such locate request shall:224


(1)  Describe the tract or parcel of land upon which the blasting or excavation is to take225


place with sufficient particularity, as defined by policies developed and promulgated by226


the UPC, to enable the facility owner or operator to ascertain the precise tract or parcel227


of land involved;228


(2)  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who will engage in the229


blasting or excavating;230


(3)  Describe the type of blasting or excavating to be engaged in by the person; and231


(4)  Designate the date upon which the blasting or excavating will commence Define the232


time frame in which requested excavation may occur.233


(b)  In the event the location upon which the blasting or excavating is to take place cannot234


be described with sufficient particularity to enable the facility owner or operator to235


ascertain the precise tract or parcel involved, the person proposing the blasting or236


excavating shall mark the route or boundary of the site of the proposed blasting or237


excavating by means of white paint, white stakes, or white flags if practical, or schedule238


an on-site meeting with the locator or facility owner or operator and inform the UPC,239


within a reasonable time, of the results of such meeting.  The person marking a site with240


white lining shall comply with the rules and regulations of the Department of241







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 8 -


Transportation as to the use of such markings so as to not to obstruct signs, pavement242


markings, pavement, or other safety devices.243


(c)  Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, notice given pursuant to subsection244


(a) of this Code section shall expire 21 calendar days following the date of such notice, and245


no blasting or excavating undertaken pursuant to this notice shall continue after such time246


has expired. In the event that the blasting or excavating which is the subject of the notice247


given pursuant to subsection (a) of this Code section will not be completed within 21248


calendar days following the date of such notice, an additional notice must be given in249


accordance with subsection (a) of this Code section for the locate request to remain valid.250


Additional notices for an existing request shall not expand the tract or parcel of land upon251


which the blasting or excavation is to take place.252


(d)  For emergencies, notice shall expire at 7:00 A.M. three business days after the253


notification is made to the UPC.254


(e)  Except for those persons submitting design locate requests, no person, including255


facility owners or operators, shall request marking of a site through the UPC unless256


excavating is scheduled to commence.  In addition, no person shall make repeated requests257


for re-marking, unless the repeated request is required for excavating to continue or due to258


circumstances not reasonably within the control of such person.  Any person who willfully259


fails to comply with this subsection shall be liable to the facility owner or operator260


for $100.00 or for actual costs, whichever is greater, for each repeated request for261


re-marking.262


(f)  If, subsequent to giving the notice to the UPC required by subsection (a) of this Code263


section, a person planning excavating determines that such work will require blasting, then264


such person shall promptly so notify the UPC and shall refrain from any blasting until the265


facility owner or operator responds within 24 hours, excluding hours during days other than266


business days, following receipt by the UPC of such notice.267


(g)  When a locate request is made in accordance with subsection (a) of this Code section,268


excavators other than the person planning the blasting or excavating may conduct such269


activity, provided that the person planning the blasting or excavating shall remain270


responsible for ensuring that any stakes or other markings placed in accordance with this271


chapter remain in place and reasonably visible until such blasting or excavating is272


completed; and provided, further, that such blasting or excavating is:273


(1)  Performed on the tract or parcel of land identified in the locate request;274


(2)  Performed by a person authorized by and having a contractual relationship with the275


person planning the blasting or excavating;276


(3)  The type of blasting or excavating described in the locate request; and277


(4)  Carried out in accordance with all other requirements of this chapter.278







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 9 -


(h)  Facility owners or operators may bill an excavator their costs for any requests for279


re-marking other than for re-marks with no more than five individual addresses on a single280


locate request.  Such costs shall be documented actual costs and shall not exceed $100.00281


per re-mark request."282


SECTION 4.283


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-7, relating to determining284


whether utility facilities are present, information to UPC, noncompliance, future utility285


facilities, and abandoned utility facilities, as follows:286


"25-9-7.287


(a)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following288


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,289


excluding hours during days other than business days, each facility owner or operator290


shall determine whether or not utility facilities are located on the tract or parcel of land291


upon which the excavating or blasting is to occur.  If utility facilities are determined to292


be present, the facility owner or operator shall designate, through stakes, flags, permanent293


markers, or other marks on the surface of the tract or parcel of land, the location of utility294


facilities.  This subsection shall not apply to large projects.295


(2)  Designation of the location of utility facilities through staking, flagging, permanent296


markers, or other marking shall be in accordance with the American Public Works297


Association (APWA) color code in place at the time the location of the utility facility is298


designated.  Additional marking requirements beyond color code, if any, shall be299


prescribed by rules and regulations promulgated by the Public Service Commission.300


(3)  A facility owner or operator is not required to mark its own facilities within 48 hours301


if the facility owner or operator or its agents are the only parties performing the302


excavation; however, such facilities shall be designated prior to the actual start of303


excavation.304


(b)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following305


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,306


excluding hours during days other than business days, each sewer system owner or307


operator shall determine whether or not sewer laterals are located or likely to be located308


on the tract or parcel of land upon which the excavating or blasting is to occur.  If sewer309


laterals are determined to be present or likely to be present, then the sewer system owner310


or operator shall assist in designating sewer laterals up to the edge of the public right of311


way.  Such assistance shall not constitute ownership or operation of the sewer lateral by312


the sewer system owner or operator.  Good faith compliance with provisions of this313


subsection in response to a locate request shall constitute full compliance with this314







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 10 -


chapter, and no person shall be found liable to any party for damages or injuries as a315


result of performing in compliance with the requirements of this subsection.316


(2)  To assist in designating sewer laterals, the sewer system owner or operator shall317


provide its best available information regarding the location of the sewer laterals to the318


excavator.  This information shall be conveyed to the excavator in a manner that may319


include, but shall not be limited to, any one of the following methods:320


(A)  Marking the location of sewer laterals in accordance with subsection (a) of this321


section, provided that:322


(i)  Any sewer lateral designated using the best available information shall constitute323


a good faith attempt and shall be deemed to be in compliance with this subsection,324


provided that such mark represents only the best available information of the sewer325


system owner or operator and may not be accurate; and326


(ii)  If a sewer lateral is unlocatable, a triangular green mark shall be placed at the327


sewer main pointing at the address in question to indicate the presence of an328


unlocatable sewer lateral;329


(B)  Providing electronic copies of or delivering the records through facsimile or by330


other means to an agreed upon location within 48 hours beginning the next business day331


after the business day following receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in332


accordance with Code Section 25-9-6, excluding hours during days other than business333


days; provided, however, that for local governing authorities that receive fewer than 50334


locate requests annually, the local governing authority may designate the agreed upon335


location and communicate such designation to the excavator;336


(C)  Arranging to meet the excavator on site to provide the best available information337


about the location of the sewer laterals;338


(D)  Providing the records through other processes and to other locations approved by339


documented agreement between the excavator and the facility owner or operator; or340


(E)  Any other reasonable means of conveyance approved by the commission after341


receiving recommendations from the advisory committee, provided that such means are342


equivalent to or exceed the provisions of subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of this343


paragraph.344


(c)  Each facility owner or operator, either upon determining that no utility facility or sewer345


lateral is present on the tract or parcel of land or upon completion of the designation of the346


location of any utility facilities or sewer laterals on the tract or parcel of land as required347


by subsection (a) or (b) of this Code section, shall provide this information to the UPC in348


accordance with procedures developed by the UPC, which may include the use of the349


PRIS.  In no event shall such notice be provided later than midnight of the second business350







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 11 -


day following receipt by the UPC of actual notice filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6.351


(d)  In the event the facility owner or operator is unable to designate the location of the352


utility facilities or sewer laterals due to extraordinary circumstances, the facility owner or353


operator shall notify the UPC and provide an estimated completion date in accordance with354


procedures developed by the UPC, which may include the use of the PRIS.355


(e)   If, at the end of the time period specified in subsections (a) and (b) of this Code356


section, any facility owner or operator has not complied with the requirements of357


subsections (a), (b), and (c) of this Code section, as applicable, the UPC shall issue a358


second request to each such facility owner or operator.  If the facility owner or operator359


does not respond to this additional request by 12:00 Noon of that business day, either by360


notifying the UPC in accordance with procedures developed by the UPC that no utility361


facilities or sewer laterals are present on the tract or parcel of land, or by designating the362


location of such utility facilities or sewer laterals in accordance with the provisions of363


subsections (a) and (b) of this Code section, as applicable, then the person providing notice364


pursuant to Code Section 25-9-6 may proceed with the excavating or blasting, provided365


that there is no visible and obvious evidence of the presence of an unmarked utility facility366


or sewer lateral on the tract or parcel of land.  Such person shall not be subject to any367


liability resulting from damage to the utility facility or sewer lateral as a result of the368


blasting or excavating, provided that such person complies with the requirements of Code369


Section 25-9-8.370


(f)  If visible and obvious evidence of the presence of an unmarked utility facility or sewer371


lateral does exist and the facility owner or operator either refuses to comply with372


subsections (a) through (d) of this Code section, as applicable, or is not a member of the373


UPC, then the excavator shall attempt to designate such facility or sewer lateral prior to374


excavating.  The facility owner or operator shall be strictly liable for the actual costs375


associated with the excavator designating such utility facilities and sewer laterals and any376


associated downtime.  Such costs shall not exceed $100.00 or documented actual costs,377


whichever is greater, for each locate request.378


(g)  All utility facilities installed by facility owners or operators on or after January 1, 2001,379


shall be installed in a manner which will make them locatable using a generally accepted380


electronic locating method.  All sewer laterals installed on or after January 1, 2006, shall381


be installed in a manner which will make them locatable by facility owners or operators382


using a generally accepted electronic locating method.  In the event that an unlocatable383


utility facility or unlocatable sewer lateral becomes exposed when the facility owner or384


operator is present or in the case of sewer laterals when the sewer utility owner or operator385


is present on or after January 1, 2006, such utility facility or sewer lateral shall be made386


locatable through the use of a permanent marker or an updating of permanent records.387







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 12 -


(h)  Facility owners or operators shall either maintain recorded information concerning the388


location and other characteristics of abandoned utility facilities, maintain such abandoned389


utility facilities in a locatable manner, or remove such abandoned utility facilities.  Facility390


owners or operators shall provide information on abandoned utility facilities, when391


possible, in response to a locate request or design locate request.  When the presence of an392


abandoned facility within an excavation site is known, the facility owner or operator should393


attempt to locate and mark designate the abandoned facility or provide information to the394


excavator regarding such facilities.  When located or exposed, all abandoned utility395


facilities and sewer laterals shall be treated as live utility facilities and sewer laterals.396


(i)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, a facility owner or operator397


may use a locator to designate any or all utility facilities and sewer laterals.  The use of a398


locator shall not relieve the facility owner or operator of any responsibility under this399


chapter.  However, by contract a facility owner or operator may be indemnified by a locator400


for any failure on the part of the locator to comply with the provisions of this chapter.401


(j)  By January 1, 2006, the advisory committee shall propose to the Public Service402


Commission rules and processes specific to the locating of large projects.  These rules shall403


include, but shall not be limited to, the establishment of detailed processes.  Such rules may404


also include changes in the time period allowed for a facility owner or operator to comply405


with the provisions of this chapter and to the time period for which designations are valid.406


The commission shall promulgate rules addressing this subsection no later than June 1,407


2006 Large project rules shall be promulgated by the Public Service Commission.  These408


rules shall include, but shall not be limited to, the establishment of detailed processes.409


Such rules may also include changes in the time period allowed for a facility owner or410


operator to comply with the provisions of this chapter and the time period for which411


designations are valid.412


(k)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following413


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,414


excluding hours during days other than business days, each facility owner or operator415


shall determine whether or not unlocatable facilities other than sewer laterals are present.416


In the event that such facilities are determined to be present, the facility owner or operator417


shall exercise reasonable care in locating such facilities. The exercise of reasonable care418


shall require, at a minimum, the use of the best available information to designate the419


facilities and notification to the UPC of such attempted location. Placing markers or420


otherwise leaving evidence of locations of facilities is deemed to be an acceptable form421


of notification to the excavator or locator.422


(2)  This subsection shall not apply to sewer laterals."423







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 13 -


SECTION 5.424


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-8, relating to treatment of gas425


pipes and other underground utility facilities by blasters and excavators, as follows:426


"25-9-8.427


(a)  Persons engaged in blasting or in excavating with mechanized excavating equipment428


shall not strike, damage, injure, or loosen any utility facility or sewer lateral which has429


been staked, flagged, or marked in accordance with this chapter.430


(b)  When excavating or blasting is to take place within the tolerance zone, the excavator431


shall exercise such reasonable care as may be necessary for the protection of the utility432


facility or sewer lateral, including permanent markers and paint placed to designate utility433


facilities.  This protection shall include, but may not be limited to, at least one of the434


following based on geographical and climate conditions: hand digging, pot holing, soft435


digging, vacuum excavation methods, pneumatic hand tools, or other technical methods436


that may be developed.  Other mechanical methods may be used with the approval of the437


facility owner or operator, or other generally accepted methods.  For parallel type438


excavations, the existing facility shall be exposed at intervals as often as necessary to avoid439


damages.440


(c)  If the precise location of the underground facilities cannot be determined by the441


excavator, the facility owner or operator thereof shall be notified by the excavator so that442


the operator and the excavator shall work together to determine the precise location of the443


underground facilities prior to continuing the excavation.444


(c)(d)  When conducting trenchless excavation the excavator must exercise reasonable care,445


as described in subsection (b) of this Code section, and shall take additional care to attempt446


to prevent damage to utility facilities and sewer laterals.  The recommendations of the447


HDD consortium applicable to the performance of trenchless excavation set out in the448


document 'Horizontal Directional Drilling Good Practice Guidelines,' dated May, 2001, are449


adopted by reference as a part of this subsection to describe such additional care.  The450


advisory committee may recommend to the commission more stringent criteria as it deems451


necessary to define additional care and the commission is authorized to adopt additional452


criteria to define additional care.453


(d)(e)  Any person engaged in blasting or in excavating with mechanized excavating454


equipment who strikes, damages, injures, or loosens any utility facility or sewer lateral,455


regardless of whether the utility facility or sewer lateral is marked, shall immediately cease456


such blasting or excavating and notify the UPC and the appropriate facility owner or457


operator, if known.  Upon receiving notice from the excavator or the UPC, the facility458


owner or operator shall send personnel to the location as soon as possible to effect459


temporary or permanent repair of the damage.  Until such time as the damage has been460







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 14 -


repaired, no person shall engage in excavating or blasting activities that may cause further461


damage to the utility facility or sewer lateral except as provided in Code Section 25-9-12."462


SECTION 6.463


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-9, relating to degree of464


accuracy required in utility facility location information, effect of inaccurate information on465


liability of blaster or excavator, and liability of facility owners for losses resulting from lack466


of accurate information, as follows:467


"25-9-9.468


(a)  For the purposes of this chapter, the location of utility facilities which is provided by469


a facility owner or operator in accordance with subsection (a) of Code Section 25-9-7 to470


any person must be accurate to within 24 18 inches measured horizontally from the outer471


edge of either side of such utility facilities. If any utility facility becomes damaged by an472


excavator due to the furnishing of inaccurate information as to its location by the facility473


owner or operator, such excavator shall not be subject to any liability resulting from474


damage to the utility facility as a result of the blasting or excavating, provided that such475


person complies with the requirements of Code Section 25-9-8 and there is no visible and476


obvious evidence to the excavator of the presence of a mismarked utility facility.477


(b)  Upon documented evidence that the person seeking information as to the location of478


utility facilities has incurred losses or expenses due to inaccurate information, lack of479


information, or unreasonable delays in supplying information by the facility owners or480


operators, the facility owners or operators shall be liable to that person for any such losses481


or expenses."482


SECTION 7.483


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-13, relating to penalties for484


violations of chapter, bonds, enforcement, advisory committee, and dispose of settlement485


recommendations, as follows:486


"25-9-13.487


(a)  Any person who violates the requirements of subsections (a), (f), or (g) of Code488


Section 25-9-6 and whose subsequent excavating or blasting damages utility facilities or489


sewer laterals shall be strictly liable for:490


(1)  All costs incurred by the facility owner or operator in repairing or replacing its491


damaged facilities; and492


(2)  Any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from damaging the utility493


facilities and sewer laterals.494







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 15 -


(b)  Each local governing authority is authorized to require by ordinance any bonds on495


utility contractors or on  persons performing excavation or blasting within the public right496


of way or any dedicated utility easement as it may determine to assure compliance with497


subsection (a) of this Code section.498


(c)  Any person who violates the requirements of Code Section 25-9-6 and whose499


subsequent excavating or blasting damages utility facilities or sewer laterals shall also500


indemnify the affected facility owner or operator against all claims or costs incurred, if any,501


for personal injury, property damage, or service interruptions resulting from damaging the502


utility facilities and sewer laterals.  Such obligation to indemnify shall not apply to any503


county, city, town, or state agency to the extent except as permitted by law.  In any civil504


action by a facility owner or operator to recover the costs of repairing or replacing facilities505


damaged through violation of Code Section 25-9-6 or 25-9-8, those costs shall be506


calculated utilizing generally accepted accounting principles.507


(d)  In addition to the other provisions of this Code section, a professional licensing board508


shall be authorized to suspend or revoke any professional or occupational license,509


certificate, or registration issued to a person pursuant to Title 43 whenever such person510


violates has repeatedly violated the requirements of Code Section 25-9-6 or 25-9-8.511


(e)  Subsections (a), (c), and (d) of this Code section shall not apply to any person who512


shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with mechanized513


equipment on any tract or parcel of land in any county in this state if the facility owner or514


operator to which notice was given respecting such blasting or excavating with mechanized515


equipment as prescribed in subsection (a) of Code Section 25-9-6 has failed to comply with516


Code Section 25-9-7 or has failed to become a member of the UPC as required by Code517


Section 25-9-5.518


(f)  The enforcement provisions of this Code section shall not apply to any person who519


shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with mechanized520


equipment within the curb lines or edges of the pavement of any public road and who521


causes damage to a utility facility located within the roadway hard surface or the graded522


aggregate base therein if such person has complied with the provisions of this chapter and523


there is no indication that a utility facility is in conflict with the proposed excavation.524


(f)(g)  The commission shall enforce the provisions of this chapter.  The commission may525


promulgate any rules and regulations necessary to implement the commission's authority526


to enforce this chapter.527


(g)(1)(h)(1)  The Governor shall appoint an advisory committee consisting of persons528


who are employees or officials of or who represent the interests of:529


(A)  One member to represent the Georgia Department of Transportation;530







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 16 -


(B)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or531


operated by local governing authorities;532


(C)  One member to represent the utilities protection center;533


(D)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or534


operated by counties;535


(E)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or536


operated by municipalities;537


(F)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal electric industry;538


(G)  Three Five members to represent excavators to include the following:539


(i)  One licensed utility contractor;540


(ii)  One licensed general contractor;541


(iii)  One licensed plumber;542


(iv)  One landscape contractor; and543


(v)  One highway contractor;544


(H)  One member to represent locators;545


(I)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal telecommunications industry;546


(J)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal natural gas industry;547


(K)  One member to represent municipal gas, electric, or telecommunications providers;548


and549


(L)  The commission chairperson or such chairperson's designee.550


The commission chairperson or his or her designee shall serve as chairperson of the551


advisory committee and shall cast a vote only in the case of a tie.  Persons appointed to552


the advisory committee shall have expert knowledge of this chapter and specific553


operations expertise with the subject matter encompassed by the provisions of this554


chapter.   The new advisory committee shall be established within 60 days of July 1,555


2005.556


(2)  The advisory committee shall establish rules of operation including an attendance557


policy.  In the event a committee member resigns or fails to meet the criteria of the558


attendance policy, the advisory committee shall appoint an interim member to represent559


the same stakeholder group until such time as the Governor appoints a replacement.560


(3)  The advisory committee shall assist the commission in the enforcement of this561


chapter, make recommendations to the commission regarding rules and regulations, and562


perform duties to be assigned by the commission including, but not limited to, the review563


of reported violations of this chapter and the preparation of recommendations to the564


commission as to the appropriate penalties to impose on persons violating the provisions565


of this chapter.566







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 17 -


(3)(4)  The members of the advisory committee shall be immune, individually and jointly,567


from civil liability for any act or omission done or made in the performance of their568


duties while serving as members of such advisory committee, but only in the absence of569


willful misconduct.570


(h)(1)(i)(1)  Commission enforcement of this chapter shall follow the procedures571


described in this subsection.  Nothing in this subsection shall limit the authority of the572


commission delegated from the federal government and authorized in other state law.573


(2)(A)  The commission is not authorized to impose civil penalties on any local574


governing authority except as provided in this paragraph.  The commission may575


recommend training for local governing authorities in response to any probable or576


proven violation.  On or after January 1, 2007, civil Civil penalties may be577


recommended for or imposed on any local governing authority for refusal to comply578


with the requirements of Code Section 25-9-7 or for other violations of Code579


Section 25-9-7 that result in injury to people, damage to property, or the interruption580


of utility service in the event that investigators find that a local governing authority has581


demonstrated a pattern of willful noncompliance.  Civil penalties may be recommended582


or imposed on or after January 1, 2006, for violations of provisions of this chapter other583


than Code Section 25-9-7 in the event that investigators find that the severity of an584


excavation violation warrants civil penalties or that a local governing authority has585


demonstrated a pattern of willful noncompliance.  Any such civil penalty shall be586


recommended or imposed in accordance with a tiered penalty structure designed for587


local governing authorities.  In the event that the investigators determine that a local588


governing authority has made a good faith effort to comply with this chapter, the589


investigators shall not recommend a civil penalty.  For purposes of this subsection590


'refusal to comply' means that a utility facility owner or operator does not respond in591


PRIS to a locate request, does not respond to a direct telephone call to locate designate592


their facilities, or other such direct refusal.  Refusal to comply does not mean a case593


where the volume of requests or some other mitigating circumstance prevents the utility594


owner or operator from locating in accordance with Code Section 25-9-7.595


(B)  No later than January 1, 2006, the advisory committee shall recommend to the596


commission for adoption a tiered penalty structure for local governing authorities.  Such597


structure shall take into account the size, annual budget, gross receipts, number of598


utility connections and types of utilities within the territory of the local governing599


authority.  Such penalty structure shall also take into account the number of locate600


tickets requests received annually by the local governing authority, the number of locate601


codes made annually to the local governing authority from the UPC, the number of602


utility customers whose service may have been interrupted by violations of this chapter,603







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 18 -


and the duration of such interruptions.  Such penalty structure shall also consider the604


cost of compliance.  The penalty structure shall establish for each tier the maximum605


penalty per violation and per 12 month period at a level to induce compliance with this606


chapter.  Such maximum penalty shall not exceed $5,000.00 per violation or $50,000.00607


per 12 month period for the highest tier.608


(3)  If commission investigators find that a probable violation has occurred, they may609


recommend training in lieu of penalties to any person for any violation.  The commission610


shall provide suggestions for corrective action to any person requesting such assistance.611


Commission investigators shall make recommended findings or offers of settlement to612


the respondent.613


(4)  Any respondent may accept or disagree with the settlement recommended by the614


investigators.  If the respondent disagrees with the recommended settlement, the615


respondent may dispute the settlement recommendation to the advisory committee.  The616


advisory committee shall then render a recommendation either supporting the617


investigators' recommendation, rejecting the investigators' recommendation, or618


substituting its own recommendation.  With respect to an investigation of any probable619


violation committed by a local governing authority, any recommendation by the advisory620


committee shall be in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection.621


In its deliberations the advisory committee shall consider the gravity of the violation or622


violations; the degree of the respondent's culpability; the respondent's history of prior623


offenses; and such other mitigating factors as may be appropriate.  If the advisory624


committee determines that a respondent has made a good faith effort to comply with this625


chapter, the committee shall not recommend civil penalties against the respondent.  To626


the extent that a respondent does not accept a settlement agreement or request to dispute627


the recommendation of the investigators to the advisory committee, the respondent shall628


be assigned to a hearing officer or administrative law judge.629


(5)  If any respondent disagrees with the recommendation of the advisory committee,630


after notice and hearing by a hearing officer or administrative law judge, such officer or631


judge shall make recommendations to the commission regarding enforcement, including632


civil penalties.  Any such recommendations relating to a local governing authority shall633


comply with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection.  The acceptance of  the634


recommendations by the respondent at any point will stop further action by the635


investigators in that case.636


(6)  When the respondent agrees with the advisory committee recommendation, the637


investigators shall present such agreement to the commission.  The commission is then638


authorized to adopt the recommendation of the advisory committee regarding a civil639


penalty, or to reject such a recommendation.  The commission is not authorized to impose640







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 19 -


a civil penalty greater than the civil penalty recommended by the advisory committee or641


to impose any civil penalty if the advisory committee does not recommend a civil642


penalty.643


(7)  The commission may, by judgment entered after a hearing on notice duly served on644


any person not less than 30 days before the date of the hearing, impose a civil penalty not645


exceeding $10,000.00 for each violation, if it is proved that the person violated any of the646


provisions of this chapter as a result of a failure to exercise additional care in accordance647


with subsection (c) (d) of Code Section 25-9-8 or reasonable care in accordance with648


other provisions of this chapter. Any such recommendations relating to a local governing649


authority shall comply with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection. Any650


proceeding or civil penalty undertaken pursuant to this Code section shall neither prevent651


nor preempt the right of any party to obtain civil damages for personal injury or property652


damage in private causes of action except as otherwise provided in this chapter.653


(i)(j)  All civil penalties ordered by the commission and collected pursuant to this Code654


section shall be deposited in the general fund of the state treasury."655


SECTION 8.656


All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this Act are repealed. 657







1 


 


Article VII. FAYETTE COUNTY UNDERGROUND MARKING STANDARDS 


 


Sec. 28-230. Definitions 


 The following words are to be understood consistent with the definitions 


contained herein as applicable to this Article. 


(a) “Emergency” means a sudden or unforeseen occurrence involving a clear 


and imminent danger to life, health, or property; the interruption of utility services; or 


repairs to transportation facilities that require immediate action. 


 


(b) “Extraordinary circumstances” means circumstances other than normal 


operating conditions which exist and make it impractical or impossible for a facility 


owner or operator to comply with the provisions of this Article.  Such extraordinary 


circumstances may include, but shall not be limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, ice 


and snow, and acts of God. 


 


(c) “Potholing” means digging on locate marks to verify utility location  


  utilizing recognized soft digging methods. (Hand tools, vacuum    


  excavation) 


Sec. 28-231. White Lining 


(a) Background. White lining is a practice that has been widely used in the 


United States where the National Transportation Board concluded that pre-marking is a 


practice that helps prevent excavation damage.  The procedure simply involves an 


excavator using white paint to indicate the route or area that is going to be excavated, 


such that the locator then knows exactly how much marking is required and where.  


White lining reduces confusion about what utilities need to be marked or not marked. 


 


(b) Purpose. The purpose of white lining is to allow everyone involved 


with the dig site to know the exact location of the proposed excavation.  White lining the 


excavation site is an excellent way to assist the utilities or utility locators in marking lines 


in the work area right the first time and in less time.  This technique eliminates 


speculation by the locator about where the excavation will take place and will often 


enable the utility or its agent to locate faster and more accurately.  In short, pre-marking 


the area and the extent of the intended excavation can reduce delays and the time it takes 


to perform the locate. 


 


(c) Examples; timing. Examples of areas to be white lined are smaller 


(involving only a portion of a particular address) or linear excavations such as 


telecommunication drops and lines, service lines (such as for water, gas, electricity and 


sewer), utility pits, cuts and repairs, curb repairs, bore holes, directional boring pathways, 


pole and signage placements, etc.  Such examples are merely explanatory of the type of 


excavation where white lining is appropriate and are not meant to be exclusive.  White 


lining shall be completed prior to contacting GA811 to obtain a locate request ticket 


number.  Electronic/virtual white lining is not an acceptable or recognized method. 



FJones

Typewritten Text

Section C







2 


 


 


(d) Exceptions to White Lining.   Exceptions are allowed as follows: 


 


(1) Unless one or more utility facilities are damaged 5 times or more 


collectively by a contractor making the locate request within a 90-day contract 


period, white lining will not be required for any large project so designated in 


accordance with GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13 (a copy of GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13 


currently in effect is attached as Exhibit “A” and by this reference is incorporated 


herein).  A large project ticket holder whose past prohibits it from being exempt, 


as stated above, will be subject to no more than a two day shutdown period and 


shall be required to white line the remainder of the project to meet the Large 


Project Marking Facility Locating Agreement Schedule that the ticket holder and 


utility originally agreed upon; 


 


(2) Homeowners/occupants involved in excavation or land disturbance 


that is confined to a single address or parcel.  Homeowners/occupants shall not 


submit locate requests for excavation or land disturbance that will be performed 


by a business, a contractor, or a utility.  Businesses, contractors, and utilities are 


not exempt from white lining;  


 


(3) “Emergencies” and “extraordinary circumstances” as such terms 


are defined herein, are statutory exceptions to the requirement for obtaining a 


locate ticket prior to commencing mechanized excavation and, hence, also 


exceptions to the requirement for white lining under this section.  However, if a 


particular emergency notification is later determined not to have been an 


emergency or an extraordinary circumstance, then the excavator’s failure to 


procure a locate ticket before excavating will be treated as a violation of this 


section.  Also, pre-excavation emergency locate ticket requests (that is, a request 


for a locate ticket on an expedited basis sooner than the prescribed time limit) will 


not be an exception to white lining as required in this section; 


 


(4) Residential telecommunication service drop lines that can be 


delineated by the route of the existing line on the ground for single residential 


address/parcel requests only; and 


 


(5) Termite baiting systems. 


 


(6) Local, State and Federal Governmental Agencies. 


 


(e) White Lining Symbols as Directions to Locator. White lining proposed 


dig sites that will follow a single path or trench shall be marked using white lines and/or 


arrows and shall be located for twenty (20) feet on either side of the white line and for 


twenty (20) feet outward beyond the designated “START” and “END” of such linear 


white line.  Therefore, it is important to identify the starting and ending points. 


 







3 


 


 


START         END 


 


(f) Identification of White Lining Excavator. In order to 


enable the locating utility or its locators to quickly identify the requested 


locate at the job site and expedite the locating process, such excavator 


when white lining shall identify himself or itself by labeling the white line 


area with the excavator’s name or the applicable locate ticket number or 


both. 


Sec. 28-232. Facility Marking by or for Utilities 


(a) Utility Markings. Facility owners or their locate contractors shall 


indicate utility facilities by placing their UPC alpha code, along with the type material (if 


known) that the facility consists of, at the beginning and end of locates.  Also, arrows 


should be placed at the ends of markings to indicate that the underground facility 


continues.  In accomplishing the locate task, the line locator shall use industry-approved 


and generally accepted methods of locating.  The tolerance zone shall be 18” measured 


horizontally from the outer edge of either side of such marked utility facilities. 


 


(1) To avoid confusion on long runs, the marks shall be frequent 


enough to identify the owner. 


 


(2) The marks shall indicate the approximate center-line of the 


underground lines.  For example, the middle of the cable, line or pipe shall be at 


the center of the dashed marks. 


 


(3) Location marks shall be 4 to 12 inches in length and at intervals of 


5 to 10 feet.  If the facility to be marked has a greater diameter than 12 inches, the 


size of the facility shall be indicated if known.  If size is not known, then the mark 


shall indicate greater than 12 inches. 


5 ft. to 10 ft. intervals 


    


   


4 inches to 12 inches 


(4) The line locator (person marking the lines) shall extend 


marks outside the proposed work area by 20 to 30 feet if those facilities 


extend outside the proposed excavation area. 


 


 



FJones

Highlight







4 


 


 


 


 


 


 


FAY01       FAY01 


 


 


(5) In areas such as flower beds, rock gardens, etc., flags or stakes may 


be an alternative to paint.  The decision to use flags, paint, or stakes shall be based 


on the terrain and job conditions.  For instance, flags or stakes in wet areas, 


offsets in dirt construction zones that have a high volume of traffic crossing their 


line location marks. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


(6) Dead ends, stub-outs, termination points, etc., shall be marked as 


follows: 


 


 FAY01            FAY01  


 


(7) Lines that have connections (e.g., T’s or Y’s) or changes in 


directions shall be clearly indicated.  Marks indicating lines or connections shall 


clearly show the intersection and path of the line or connection.  Marks that show 


changes in direction shall be placed closer together for more clarity and accuracy. 


 


 


 







5 


 


 FAY01 


 


 


 


 FAY01  FAY01 


 


 


 


 


 FAY01 


 


 


 


(8) Manholes and valves shall be identified by using a circle and 


letters if they are not visible (dirt covering valve boxes or pavement covering 


manhole cover). 


 


 V M 


 


 


(9) Facilities that cross but do not intersect shall be marked as 


described to indicate such installation manner. 


 


 


                                    FAY01 


 


 


 


                                 


                                 FAY01                                                                     FAY01 


 


 


 


 


                                                          FAY01 


 


 


 


 


 







6 


 


(10) Unlocateable sewer laterals shall be marked by placing a green 


triangle on the sewer main and, if the location of the tap for such unlocateable 


sewer lateral is known, by placing a green “T” or “Y” or other appropriate symbol 


at the tap pointing generally toward the address served by such unlocateable 


sewer lateral. 


 


 


 


               PCHO7 


 


 


(11) When facilities share the same trench, they shall be heavily 


identified and separated enough so that they can be readily identified.  This would 


apply to lines that share the same color code.  For example, cable television and 


telephone lines: 


 


 


     AT&T 


  


                                                        COMCAST 


         GA. POWER 


 


 


(12) If the facility to be marked has a diameter greater than 12”, the size 


of the facility shall be indicated if known.  If the size is not known, then the mark 


shall indicate greater than 12 inches. 


 


(13) Duct structures shall be marked by using a dot with parallel 


boundary on each side of the dot. 


 


  


 AT&T 


 


 


(14) In areas where there is a strong likelihood that any or all marker 


types showing line location would be destroyed, offsets shall be placed on a 


permanent surface.  However, offsets should be used only in conjunction with 


marks placed above a facility.  Offset spacing should be every third or fourth 


mark.  For example, the following mark would indicate the line is 16 feet from the 


end of the arrow.           


            







7 


 


                                     AT&T 


 


 


 


  


                                                          AT&T 


 


(15) In areas where cables are spliced, the facilities should be located 


individually as far as possible on both sides of the splice.  When the signal is 


distorted due to the near proximity to the splice a circle with “SP” should indicate 


the area of distortion or “splice pit”. 


 


 


 


  


 


                                                               SP 


  


 


 


Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 25-9-3, 25-9-6, 25-9-7 (a) (2), 25-9-12, 25-9-13 (f), 46-2-20 (i) and 


46-2-30 and GPSC Utility Rule 515-9-1-.01. 


 


Sec. 28-233. Facility Protection / Damage Prevention Requirements for 


Contractors/Excavators/Utilities. 


(a) All Contractors/Excavators/Utilities shall utilize potholing methods to determine 


facility locations prior to excavating with mechanized equipment.   


(b) Any person involved in an excavation with mechanized equipment found digging or 


performing land disturbing activities within the “Tolerance Zone” of a facility 


without evidence of “Potholing” will be found to be in violation of this ordinance. 


(c) The tolerance zone shall be 18” measured horizontally from the outer edge of either 


side of such marked utility facilities. 


(d) White Lining is a mandatory practice except as stated in Sec 28-231 (d) 


(1)(2)(3)(4)(5)(6). 



FJones

Highlight







8 


 


(e) Large Projects within Fayette County shall utilize the marking agreement form 


provided by Fayette County.  Large Project Marking Agreements shall clearly state a 


defined date for marking and construction completion for each section.  Revisions to 


the marking agreement shall be submitted to GA811 and each Utility Owner affected 


by the Large Project. 


Sec. 28-234. Stop Work Orders. 


Upon notice from any Governmental Official, work shall immediately 


cease. Such notice shall be given to the person doing the work. The 


notice shall state the conditions under which work is authorized to 


resume. Any person who shall continue any work after having been 


served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is 


directed to perform to rectify the violation, shall be subject to penalties 


as prescribed by law.  


 


Sec. 28-235. Penalties. 


 Any person, who violates a provision of the ordinance, shall be subject to penalties as 


prescribed by law. Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been served 


shall be deemed a separate offense.  Multiple offences can result in revocation of 


privilege to work within right of way. 


 





		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request File

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request with Backup

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request File

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request with Backup

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request File

		Water System- Revised White Lining Backup

		Water System- Rescind White Lining Backup-a

		Commissioners- Rescind White Lining Backup-1

		Commissioners- Rescind White Lining Backup-2



		Water System- Rescind White Lining Backup-b

		Water System- Rescind White Lining Backup-c
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Water System Director Lee Pope


Consideration of the Water System's recommendation to approve the Professional Services Task Order (Task 1) from CH2M Hill, in the 


amount of $370,000.00, for design services of capital improvements at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant.


The Crosstown Water Treatment Plant is a conventional water treatment facility that is owned and operated by the Fayette County Water 


System.  In response to a recent sanitary survey conducted by the Georgia Environmental Protection Division ( EPD), CH2M Hill worked 


with the County to develop a capital improvement plan to address deficiencies noted during the sanitary survey.  Significant areas noted 


for immediate improvement in the capital improvement plan for the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant were 1)  the rehabilitation of 


granular media filters, 2)  the replacement of the chlorine dioxide generation system, and 3)  the addition of a new powdered activation 


carbon storage and feed system.  The proposed task order will allow CH2M Hill to assist the County in performing design related services 


for the following:   


 


  Replacement of the existing chlorine dioxide generation system, and addition of two chemical storage tanks 


  Replacement of filter control valves, actuators, rate of flow controllers and portions of the filter effluent piping 


  Replacement of the existing filter media, underdrains, and subsurface was system 


  Modification of the existing lime silo system 


 


See attached Task Order and Capital Plan (Exhibit A) for additional information.


Approval of the Water System's recommendation to approve the Professional Services Task Order (Task 1) from CH2M Hill, in the 


amount of $370,000.00, for improvements at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant.


Funds are available from the MIEX bond proceeds.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


These improvements address the Consent Order and provide the foundation for the water treatment plant optimization plan associated 


with the sanitary survey conducted by the Georgia Environmental Protection Division. 


New BusinessJune 12, 2014



FJones

Typewritten Text

New Business #10























Crosstown WTP
ID # Recommended Improvement Category Priority In‐House


10A Filter modifications: Replace all filter underdrains Treatment Critical $850,000
10B Filter modifications: Replace all filter media Treatment Critical $200,000
10C Filter modifications: Replace all filter valves with electric actuated valves Treatment Critical $650,000
10D Filter modifications: Add blower and air scour to each of the filters Treatment Critical $450,000


10E


Filter modifications: Replace filter control system with new PLC based system and integrate into 


SCADA Treatment Critical $250,000


12B


Chemical Modifications: Demolish existing chlorine dioxide system and install a new chlorine 


dioxide system in the same room. Chemical Critical $375,000


12C


Chemical Modifications: Install new liquid lime system with feeds to both raw and post and 


demolish existing lime systems. Chemical Critical $650,000


12H


Chemical Modifications: Install new sodium or potassium permanganate system in chemical 


building. Chemical Critical $195,000
2 Replace raw water sample pipe from raw water metering pit to operation's building Treatment High $6,000
4 Add streaming current meter to raw water splitter box. Raw Water High $24,000
6 Add pH meter to raw water meter vault Raw Water High $18,000


Crosstown WTP ‐ Continued
9A Sedimentation Basin Modifications: Demolish the divider wall (curtains) Treatment High $16,000


9B


Sedimentation Basin Modifications: Replace the Trac‐Vac systems with MRI Hoseless Sludge 


Collection System Treatment High $40,000
9C Sedimentation Basin Modifications: MRI Equipment Treatment High $490,000
9D Sedimentation Basin Modifications: Adjust outlet weir heights as required Treatment High $4,000
12F Chemical Modifications: Integrate alum tank levels into SCADA Chemical High $45,000
12G Chemical Modifications: Replace alum pumps and integrate new pumps into SCADA Chemical High $10,000


13


Modify solids decant return system to return flow to opposite side or raw water reservoir than the 


local raw water pump station. Solids High $85,000
27a Add THM online Analyzers in Lab at each plant Treatment High $45,000


12A


Chemical Modifications: Install powder activated carbon system with silo; capable of doing raw 


water and on top of filters. Chemical Medium $195,000
29 New roof for the filter building  and HVAC modifications Other Medium $100,000


Subtotal $4,698,000


South Fayette County WTP
ID # Recommended Improvement Category Priority In‐House


19B Chemical Modifications: Install liquid lime system and demlish existing lime system Chemical Critical $500,000
23 Flint River Pump Station: Add flow meter  Raw Water High $15,000
24 Lake Horton Pump Station: Add flow meter  Raw Water High $15,000
26 Lake Peachtree: Add flow meter  Raw Water High $15,000
27b Add THM online Analyzers in Lab at each plant  Treatment High $45,000
19C Chemical Modifications: Replace existing carbon system with new PAC system with silo Chemical High $195,000
25 Add flow meter at RW pump station Raw Water High $15,000
19D Chemical Modifications: Add ability to dose chlorine on top of the filters Chemical Medium $1,000


19G Chemical Modifications: Replace and relocate the existing potassium permanganate system Chemical Medium $2,000


99 Lake Horton Raw Water Pump Actuators Raw Water High $175,000


Subtotal $978,000


$5,676,000Grand Total


Exhibit A





		Water System- Task 1 Agenda Request File

		Water System- Task 1 Agenda Request with Backup

		Water System- Task 1 Agenda Request File

		Water System- Task 1 Backup

		Water System- Task 1 Backup

		Water System- Task 1 CIP Plan











